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2011-04-19
Avia Solutions Group AB Notification on material event 19.04.2011

Amended draft resolutions of ordinary shareholders meeting of Avia Solutions Group AB which will be convened on
April 29, 2011

Draft resolutions of the ordinary meeting of Avia Solutions Group AB shareholders (company code 302541648,
registered address: Smolensko st. 10, Vilnius) which will take place on April 29, 2011:

1. Approval of the consolidated annual report of the Company for the year 2010.

Draft decision:
- To approve the consolidated annual report of the Company for the year 2010.

2. Approval of the annual financial statements of the Company and consolidated group annual financial statements
for the year 2010.

Draft decision:
- To approve annual financial statements of the Company and consolidated group annual financial statements for the year 2010.

3. Allocation of the profit (loss) of the Company for the year 2010.

Draft decision:
- To approve the profit (loss) allocation of the Company for the year 2010.

4. Election of the auditor of the Company.

Draft decision:

-To elect “PricewaterhouseCoopers” UAB, legal entity’s code 111473315, registered address at |. Jasinskio str. 16B, Vilnius, the
Republic of Lithuania, as the Company's auditor to perform the audit of the Group consolidated financial statements for the year
2011. To authorize the Company’s general manager or any member of the Board to conclude the agreement for audit services,
establishing the payment for services as agreed between the parties but in any case not more than 300 000 litas (VAT excluded)
for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the 2011 financial year.

5. Election of the new Supervisory Board member of the Company.

Draft decision:
-To elect Mr. Dariusz Formela as the Company’s Supervisory Board independent member.

All the documents possessed by the Company related to the agenda of the Meeting, will be available at the
headquarters of Avia Solutions Group AB, Smolensko st. 10, Vilnius, Lithuania (tel. +370 5 2525500) and also
available online at http://www.aviasg.com.

Linas Dovydenas
General Manager
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of Avia Solutions Group AB

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying stand alone and consolidated financial statements (together ‘the
Financial statements’) of Avia Solutions Group AB (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively ‘the
Group’) set out on pages 5-50 which comprise stand alone and consolidated balance sheet as of 31
December 2010 and stand-alone and consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the period since incorporation (the Company) and the year then ended
(the Group), and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB, J. Jasinskio 16B, LT-o1112 Vilnius, Lithuania
T: +370 (5) 239 2300, F:+370 (5) 239 2301, E-mail: vilnius@It.pwe.com, www.pwe.com/lt

PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB, company code 111473315, VAT payer's code LT114733113, regisiered office al J. Jasinskio 168, LT-01112 Vilnius,
is a privale company registered with the Legal Entities’ Register of the Repubtic of Lithuania. PricewsaterhouseCoopers refers to the network of member firms of
PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company and the Group as of 31 December 2010, and of their financial performance
and their cash flows for the period since incorporation (the Company) and the year then ended
(the Group) in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2010 set

out on pages 51- 62 and have not noted any material inconsistencies between the financial information
included in it and the audited Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

On behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB

Christopher C. Butler

Rimvydas Jogéla
Director

Auditor’s Certificate No.000457

Vilnius, Republic of Lithuania
19 April 2011



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

@ Avia Solutions Group

Approved by the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders as at 2011
Year ended 31 December
GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
Note 31 December 2010
Revenue 6 304 263 233 358 289
Other income 7 7339 217 -
Aircraft fuel (88452) (47 048) -
Rent of aircrafts and equipment ( 54 240) (43479) -
Employee related expenses 8 (395361) (40 528) (184)
Aircraft servicing and handling expenses (27841) (33138) -
Spare parts and consumables expenses (19544) (15 346) -
Cost of services resold (9694) (3557) -
Aircraft maintenance expenses {(8007) (4879) -
Training and related expenses (7132) (1518) -
Depreciation and amortization 9,15, 16 (4878) (4 700) (10)
Rent and maintenance of premises (2777) (9414) -
Impairment of receivables 3.1,19 (1420) (2 769) -
Other operating expenses 10 (24224) (19 350) (147)
Other gain/(loss) - net 11 13 296 -
Operating profit (loss) 23845 8145 (52)
Finance income 814 273 -
Finance cost (3989) (2083) (83)
Finance costs — net 12 (3175) (1810) (83)
Profit (loss) before income tax 20 670 6335 (135)
Income tax 13 (2879) (1685) 2
Profit (loss) for the year 17 791 4650 (133)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to:
Equity holders 18013 4619 (133)
Non-controlling interests (222) 31 -
17 791 4650 (133)
Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences (16) - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 17 775 4650 133
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders 17 997 4619 (133)
Non-controlling interests (222) 31 -
17775 4650 (133)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (in LTL) 14 4.03 1.01 (0.03)

The notes on pages 10 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 5 to 50 have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors asat 19 A

on their behalf by the General Manager:

General Director
Linas Dovydénas



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL 000 unless otherwise stated)

BALANCE SHEETS Approved by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders as at 2011

Year ended 31 December

GROUP COMPANY
Note 2010 2009 2010
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 15 29198 25 340 319
Intangible assets 16 2723 2235 7
Financial assets 17 - - 8195
Trade and other receivables 19 1920 4200 -
Deferred income tax assets 26 1157 1040 2
34 998 32 815 8523
Current assets
Inventories 18 12 319 9102 -
Trade and other receivables 19,20 54 303 21 634 1066
Short-term bank deposits 1926 1468 -
Prepaid income tax 240 165 -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 10713 5909 4
79 501 38 278 1070
Total assets 114 499 71093 9593
EQUITY
Equity attributable to the Group’s equity
shareholders
Share capital 1 4420 - 4420
Merger reserve 22 (3 473) - -
Cumulative translations differences (16) - -
Retained earnings 24 001 - (133)
Invested capital 213,22 - 7 015 -
24 932 7 015 4 287
Non-controlling interests 119 - -
Total equity 25 051 7 015 4287
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 23 10 580 15 344 -
Security deposits received 25 9380 - -
Trade and other payables 24 1746 3963 -
Deferred income tax labilities 26 33 - -
21739 19 307 -
Current liabilities
Borrowings 23 24716 8 560 4 698
Trade and other payables 24 37 080 30457 608
Advances received 2908 2630 -
Current income tax liabilities 2058 1013 -
Security deposits received 25 947 2111 -
67 709 44 771 5 306
Total liabilities 89 448 64 078 5 306
Total equity and liabilities 114 499 71 093 9593

The notes on pages 10 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

General Director
Linas Dovydénas




AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Approved by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders as at 2011
THE GROUP Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group Non-  Total
Share  Merger Currency Retained Invested Total control- equity

capital  reserve translation earnings  capital ling

Note differences inferests
Balance at 1 January 2009 - - - - 811 811 261 1072

Comprehensive income
Profit for the period - - - - 4619 4619 31 4650

Transactions with owners
Acquisition of non-

controlling interests 22 - - - - 292 292 (292) -
Movements in invested

capital 22 - - - - 1293 1293 - 1293
Total transactions with

owrlers - - - - 1585 1585 (292) 1293
Balance at 31 December 2009 /

at 1 January 2010 - - - - 7 015 7 015 - 7015

Comprehensive income
Currency translation

difference 2.3 - - (16) - - (16) - (16)
Profit for the period - - - 18 013 - 18013 (222) 17791
Total comprehensive income - - (16) 18013 (7015) 17997 (222) 17775

Transactions with owners
Share issue pursuant to share

acquisition agreements 1 150 - - - - 150 - 150

Issue of additional shares 1 4270 - - - - 4270 - 4270

Reallocation of accumulated

invested capital pursuant to

the Pre-IPO Reorganisation 22 - 26 - 6308 (7015) (681) 341 (340)

Effect of transactions with

non-controlling interests 1 - (3 517y - - - {3517) - (3517)

Transfer to legal reserve - 18 - (18) - - - -

Acquisition of subsidiaries 31 - - - (302) - (302) - (302)

Total transactions with 4,420 (3473) - 5988 - 80) 341 261

owners

Balance at 31 December

2010 4,420 (3,473) (16) 24,001 - 24932 119 25,051

THE COMPANY Share Retained Total
Note capital earnings equity

Transaction with owners

Share issue pursuant to share acquisition agreements 1 150 - 150

Issue of additional shares 1 4270 - 4270

Total transactions with owners 4420 - 4420

Net loss - total comprehensive income for the period - (133) (133)

Balance at 31 December 2010 4420 (133) 4 287

The notes on pages 10 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

General Director
Linas Dovydénas



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL 000 unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Approved by the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders as at 2011

Year ended 31 December

GROUP COMPANY
Notes 2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010
Operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year 17 791 4651 (133y
Income tax 13 2879 1685 (2)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 9,15, 16 4 878 4700 10
Discounting effect on deposits placed 1517 437 -
Interest expenses 12 1435 910 83
Impairment of accounts receivable, 3.1, 19 1420 2769 -
Accruals of c-check costs, hangar lease payments 1419 2615 -
Currency translations differences 1081 (136) -
Interest income 7 (114) (217) -
Changes in working capital:
- Inventories (3217) (1085} -
- Trade and other receivables (31002) (12921) (991)
- Trade and other payables, advances received (96) 6614 595
- Security deposits received 8730 (122) -
Cash generated from (used in) operations 6721 9 900 (438)
Interest received 14 - -
Interest paid (770) (606) -
Income tax paid (1434) (1948) -
Net cash generated from (used in) operating
activities 4531 7 346 438)
Investing activities
Purchase of PPE and intangible assets ( 6 948) (1904) -
Proceeds from PPE and intangible assets 82 346 -
Purchase of subsidiary companies - - (4 208)
Loans granted (5297) (2986) -
Repayments of loans granted 5034 2720 -
Deposits placed (2290) (974) -
Purchase of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 31 43 - -
Net cash used in investing activities (9 376) (2798) (4 208)




AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

Financing activities

Increase of share capital

Increase of non-controlling interests

Capital contribution towards share capital of
combining entities

Bank borrowings received

Repayments of bank borrowings

Borrowings from related parties received
Repayments of borrowings from related parties
Repayments of lease liabilities

Net cash generated from financing activities
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of year

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
At end of year

The notes on pages 10 to 50 form an integral part of these financial statements.

General Director
Linas Dovydénas

Notes

22

22

21

21

% Avia Solutions Group

Year ended 31 December

GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010

4420 - 4420
101 - -
. 4 -
17 805 1622 -
(9948) (2933) .
13504 - 230
(14 908) 3115 -
(539) (541) -
10 435 1267 4650
5590 5815 4
4416 (1399) -
5590 5815
10 006 4416
2



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010
(All tabular amounts are in LTL '000 unless otherwise stated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 General information

% Avia Solutions Group

Avia Solutions Group AB (referred to as the Company) is a public limited liability company incorporated at
State Enterprise Centre of Registers of the Republic of Lithuania as at 31 August 2010 (Company code —
302541648). The Company is domiciled in Vilnius, the capital of Lithuania. The address of its registered office
is as follows: Smolensko 10, LT-03201, Vilnius.

The shareholders” structure of the Company as at 31 December 2010 was as follows:

ZIA Valda Cyprus Ltd.
Indeco: Investment and Development UAB
Harberin Enterprises Limited
Kaikaris Vytautas

Butautis Jonas

Sanikovas Aurimas

Number of shares %
1939275 43.875

1292 850 29.250

1077 375 24.375

55 250 1.250

44 200 1.000

11 050 0.250

4 420 000 100

The Company’s principal activity is the management of its subsidiaries. Companies of the Group operate in

the following activity areas: passenger carriage by charter flights; aircraft maintenance, repair and overhaul;
aircraft ground handling and fuelling; pilot and crew training.

The number of full time staff employed by the Group at the end of 2010 amounted to 678 (2009: 567). The
number of full time staff employed by the Company at the end of 2010 amounted to 8.

The subsidiaries, which are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are indicated below:

Share of equity

at 31December, %

The Group’s Country of Operating 2010 2009' Date of acquiring/establishment and
companies establishment segment activity
Baltic Aviation Lithuania Pilot and Crew 100 100  The Group company was established on 22
Academy UAB Training November 2006. The company provides
aircraft crew training services
Baltic Ground Lithuania Aircraft Ground 100 100  The subsidiary was acquired on 31 October
Services UAB Handling and 2008. The company provides aircraft
Fuelling ground handling and fueling services.
Baltic Ground Poland Aircraft Ground 100 - The subsidiary was established in spring of
Services Handling and 2010. 1t is a direct subsidiary of Baltic
Sp.z.0.0. Fuelling Ground Services UAB. Currently it has
started preparations for aircraft ground
handling and fueling activity in Poland.
Baltic Ground Italy Aircraft Ground 100 - The subsidiary was established in winter of
Services s.r.l. Handling and 2010. It is a direct subsidiary of Baltic
Fuelling Ground Services UAB. Currently it has
started  preparations for aircraft ground
handling and fueling activity in Italy.
FL Technics AB  Lithuania Aircraft mainte 100 100 The subsidiary was established on 22

nance, repair
and overhaul
(MRO)

December 2005, In summer of 2007 the
Company started active sales of aircraft
maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO)
services.

1~ As at 31 December 2009 the Subsidiaries were controlled by Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB.

10



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

1 General information {continued)

Share of equity
at 31 December, %
The Group Country of Operating 2010 2009' Date of acquiring/establishment and
company establishment segment activity
FL Technics Jets  Lithuania Aircraft mainte 100 - The subsidiary was acquired on 1
UAB nance, repair December 2010. Currently it has started
and overhaul preparations for active sales.
(MRO)
FLT Trading Lithuania Aircraft mainte 100 - The subsidiary was acquired on 19
House UAB nance, repair November 2010. Currently it has started
and overhaul preparations for active sales.
(MRO)
Locatory.com Lithuania Aircraft mainte 100 - The subsidiary was established on 7
UAB nance, repair December 2010. Currently it has started
and overhaul preparations for active sales.
(MRO)
Small Planet Lithuania Charter 95.5 100 The subsidiary was established on 14
Airlines UAB operations March 2007. In autumn of 2008 the
Company started active sales of charter
flights.
Small Planet Estonia Charter 95.5 100 The subsidiary was established on 5
Airlines AS operations December 2008. In spring of 2009 the
Company started active sales of charter
flights.
Small Planet Poland Charter 95.5 100 The subsidiary was established on 25
Airlines operations November 2009. In spring of 2010 the
Sp.z.o.0. Company started active sales of charter
flights.
Small Planet Italy Charter 95.5 - The subsidiary was established on 17
Airlines s.r.l. operations February 2010. Currently the Company has

started preparations for charter activity.

- As at 31 December 2009 the Subsidiaries were controlled by Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB.

The shareholders of the Company have a statutory right to approve these financial statements or not to
approve them and to require preparation of another set of financial statements.

Historical information

Baltic Aviation Academy UAB, Small Planet Airlines UAB, Small Planet Airlines AS Small Planet Airlines Sp.
2.0.0., Small Planet Airlines s.r.1, FL Technics AB (referred to as Avia Solutions Group Companies or the Group)
comprised jointly managed aviation services business under control of Ridota AB (from 2005 till 30 January
2008) and Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB (from 31 January 2008 till 30 September 2010). Both Ridota AB
and Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB are referred to as The Initial Holding Companies. Baltic Ground
Services UAB was acquired on 31 October 2008 and included into the Group.

The Initial Holding Companies also held interest in other entities. These other entities together with the
Initial Holding Companies are treated as Other Initial Group Companies. Avia Solutions Group Companies and
Other Initial Group Companies are treated as the Initial Group.

The Initial Group was a wholly owned by three shareholders ZIA valda AB (45%), Indeco: Investment and
Development UAB (30%), and SANITEX BI UAB (25%) (hereinafter the Tnitial Shareholders). During 2010 the
Initial Shareholders conducted a reorganisation, which was completed on 30 September 2010, whereby the
companies comprising the aviation services business of Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB were reorganised
under newly set up entity Avia Solutions Group AB (hereinafter the Company) (hereinafter the Pre-IPO
Reorganisation) for the purposes of preparing for the Initial Public Offering. As such, prior to 30 September
2010, the Company did not control the entities it acquired pursuant to the Pre-IPO Reorganisation and did
not therefore prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the comparative consolidated financial
statements are based on the combined financial statements of the entities acquired by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Reorganisation (hereinafter the Group).

11



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts ave in LTL “000 unless otherwise stated)

@ Avia Solutions Group

1 General information (continued)

The immediate and ultimate parent company of the Group is ZIA Valda AB, which owned 45 per cent of the
holding company of Initial Group and exercised the right to appoint the General Director of the holding
company which was the only managing body and, therefore, had the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Group. After pre-IPO Reorganisation ZIA Valda AB retained the ri ght to appoint the
General Director of the holding company and is the ultimate parent company of the Group. The ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Gediminas Ziemelis.

During the period from the date of incorporation of the Company until 30 September 2010, significant legal
restructuring was undertaken in preparation for the initial offering (“IPO”). The restructuring has been
performed in three steps as described below.

The first step — formation of the share capital of Avia Solutions Group AB Share capital of the

Company
The share issue pursuant to Avia Solutions Group AB share acquisition 150
agreements (as at 31 August 2010). Shares have been subscribed and paid-up
by 6 shareholders indicated in the table above.
Additional emission of shares of Avia Solutions Group AB (as at 7 September, 4270
as cash injection). Shares have been subscribed and paid-up by 6 shareholders
indicated in the table above.

4 420

Purchase consideration/
nominal value of share

The second step (during September 2010) — acquisition of newly issued share capital
in the Group companies for nominal value. After this step, the Company held 90 per

cent of shave capital in Baltic Ground Services UAB, FL Technics UAB, Baltic

capital issued in Group

Aviation Acadeny UAB and 85.5 per cent of share capital in Small Planet Airlines companies
companies.
Avia Solutions Group AB purchase consideration for the newly issued shares 4165
of the Group companies (paid-up in cash)
Non-controlling interest purchase consideration for the newly issued shares of 101
the Group companies (paid-up in cash)

4266
The third step (during September 2010) — acquisition of the remaining 10 per cent of
share capital of the Group companies
The nominal value of the remaining 10 percent of the share capital of the 473
Group companies
Avia Solutions Group AB purchase consideration for the acquisition of (3990)
remaining 10 percent of the share capital of the Group companies (payment
postponed for 2 years)
The difference between the consideration and nominal value of the share (3517)

capital acquired in the third step of the pre-IPO Reorganisation.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern

basis and under the historical cost convention.

12



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

These financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2010 and stand-alone financial statements of the Company for the period since incorporation
till 31 December 2010.

During the period from the date of incorporation until the 30 September 2010 the Group has not in the past
constituted a separate legal group, although all combining entities were controlled by one party and
managed as one business. The comparative financial information is therefore prepared on a basis that
combined/carved out the results, assets and liabilities of each of the companies constituting the aviation
services business of the Initial Holding Companies by applying the principles underlying the
consolidation procedures of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and emended standards and interpretations adopted by the Group and the Company

The Group has adopted the following new and amended IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations as of 1 January
2010:

IAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, vevised in January 2008 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The revised IAS 27 requires an entity to attribute total
comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests (previously
"minority interests”) even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance (the
previous standard required the excess losses to be allocated to the owners of the parent in most cases). The
revised standard specifies that changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
the loss of control must be accounted for as equity transactions. It also specifies how an entity should
measure any gain or loss arising on the loss of control of a subsidiary. At the date when control is lost, any
investment retained in the former subsidiary has to be measured at its fair value. The Group has changed
its accounting policy for transactions with non-controlling interests and the accounting for loss of control
or significant influence from 1 January 2010. Previously, when the Group ceased to have control or
significant influence over an entity, the carrying amount of the investment at the date control or significant
influence became its cost for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interests as
associates, jointly controlled entity or financial assets. The Group has applied the new accounting policies
prospectively to transactions occurring after 1 January 2010. As a consequence, no adjustments were
necessary to any of the amounts previously recognised in the financial statements.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, issued in April 2009 (amendments to IFRS
2, IAS 38, IFRIC 9 and IFRIC 16 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009;
amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 8, IAS 1, IAS 7, IAS 17, IAS 36 and IAS 39 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010; the amendments as adopted by the EU are effective for annual
periods starting after 31 December 2009). The improvements consist of a mixture of substantive changes
and clarifications in the following standards and interpretations: clarification that contributions of
businesses in common control transactions and formation of joint ventures are not within the scope of
IFRS 2; clarification of disclosure requirements set by IFRS 5 and other standards for non-current assets (or
disposal groups) classified as held for sale or discontinued operations; requiring to report a measure of
total assets and liabilities for each reportable segment under IFRS 8 only if such amounts are regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker; amending IAS 1 to allow classification of certain liabilities
settled by entity's own equity instruments as non-current; changing 1AS 7 such that only expenditures that
result in a recognised asset are eligible for classification as investing activities; allowing classification of
certain long-term land leases as finance leases under IAS 17 even without transfer of ownership of the land
at the end of the lease; providing additional guidance in IAS 18 for determining whether an entity acts as a
principal or an agent; clarification in IAS 36 that a cash generating unit shall not be larger than an
operating segment before aggregation; supplementing IAS 38 regarding measurement of fair value of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination; amending IAS 39 (i) to include in its scope option
contracts that could result in business combinations, (ii) to clarify the period of reclassifying gains or

13



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

losses on cash flow hedging instruments from equity to profit or loss for the year and (iii) to state that
a prepayment option is closely related to the host contract if upon exercise the borrower reimburses
economic loss of the lender; amending IFRIC 9 to state that embedded derivatives in contracts acquired in
common control transactions and formation of joint ventures are not within its scope; and removing the
restriction in IFRIC 16 that hedging instruments may not be held by the foreign operation that itself is
being hedged. The amendments did not have any effect on the Company’s and the Group's financial
statements.

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards effective in 2010 but not relevant to the Group
and the Company:

IFRS 3, Business Combinations, revised in January 2008 (effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
July 2009). The revised IFRS 3 did not have a material impact on the Group's and Company’s financial
statements.

Amendment to IFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (and consequential
amendments to IFRS 1) (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The amendment
did not have any effect on the Group'’s and Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements. The interpretation contains guidance on applying the existing
standards by service providers in public-to-private service concession arrangements. Application of IFRIC
12 will not have any impact on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009; IFRIC 15 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31
December 2009). The amendment did not have any effect on the Group's and Company’s financial
statements.

Esmnbedded Derivatives - Amendments to IFRIC 19 and IAS 39, issued in March 2009 (effective for annual
periods ending on or after 30 June 2009; amendments to IFRIC 19 and IAS 39 as adopted by the EU are
effective for annual periods beginning after 31 December 2009). The amendment did not have any effect on
the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 October 2008; IFRIC 16 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 30 June
2009). The interpretation did not have any effect on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 17, Distributions of Non-Cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 July 2009; IFRIC 17 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31 October 2009).
The interpretation did not have any effect on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective prospectively to transfers of assets from customers
received on or after 1 July 2009, earlier application permitted; IFRIC 18 as adopted by the EU is eifective
for annual periods beginning after 31 October 2009). The interpretation did not have any effect on the
Group's and Company’s financial statements.

Eligible Hedged Items - Amendment to 1AS 39 (effective with retrospective application for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009). The amendment did not have any effect on the Group's and Company’s
financial statements.

IFRS 1, First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, revised in December 2008
(effective for the first IFRS financial statements for a period beginning on or after 1 July 2009; restructured
IFRS 1 as adopted by the EU is effective for annual periods beginning after 31 December 2009). The revised
standard did not have any effect on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.
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2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions - Amendments to IFRS 2 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010). The amendment did not have any effect on the Group's and
Company’s financial statements.

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters - Amendments to IFRS 1 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2010; not yet adopted by the EU). The amendment did not have any effect
on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

(c) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

Classification of Rights Issues - Amendment to IAS 32, issued in October 2009 (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010). The Group and the Company are currently assessing the
impact of the amendment on its financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, issued in November 2009 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011). The Group and the Company are currently assessing the impact of
the amended standard on disclosures in its financial statements.

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments Part 1: Classification and Measurement, issued in November 2009 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013; not yet adopted by the EU). The Group and the
Company are considering the implications of the standard, the impact on the Group and the Company
and the timing of its adoption by the Group.

IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2010). This interpretation will not have any impact on the Group's and
Company’s financial statements.

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement - Amendment to IFRIC 14 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011). This amendment will not have any impact on the Group's and
Company’s financial statements.

Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7 disclosures for first-time adopters - Amendment to IFRS 1
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010). This amendment will not have any impact
on the Group's and Company’s financial statements.

Improvements to International Financial Reporting Standards, issued in May 2010 (effective dates vary
standard by standard, most improvements are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011; the improvements have not yet been adopted by the EU). The Group and the Company do not
expect the amendments to have any material effect on its financial statements.

Disclosures—Transfers of Financial Assets - Amendments to IFRS 7 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2011; not yet adopted by the EU). The Group and the Company do not expect
the amendments to have any material effect on its financial statements.

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets - Amendment to IAS 12 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012; not yet adopted by the EU). The Group and the Company do not
expect the amendments to have any material effect on its financial statements.

Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-time adopters - Amendment to IFRS 1 ( effective

for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011; not yet adopted by the EU). The Group and the
Company do not expect the amendments to have any material effect on its financial statements.
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2.2

Consolidation
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has interest of more than 50% of the
shares with voting rights or otherwise has power to govern the operating and financial policies so as to
obtain economic benefits. All subsidiaries have been consolidated / combined in the Group’s financial
statements.

An associate is an entity, in which the Group owns between 20% and 50% of the shares with voting rights
and over which the Group has significant influence. As at the balance sheet date, the Group had no
associates.

A subsidiary is consolidated / combined from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and is
no longer consolidated / combined from the date on which control ceases. The group uses the acquisition
method of accounting to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The excess of the consideration transferred the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquire and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquire over the fair value of the
group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities included
within the combined / consolidated financial statements have been eliminated. Transactions and balances
between the Group and the Initial Group, the Initial Shareholders and their related entities (excluding any
member of the Group) (hereinafter , the Related Party”) have been presented in the appropriate caption of

the financial statements to which such transactions and balances relate.
Business combinations involving entities under common control

Business combination involving entities under common control is a transaction in which all of the
combining entities are controlled by the same party or parties before and after the transaction and that
control is not transitory.

As business combinations involving entities under common control are excluded from IFRS 3 scope,
management uses merger accounting (otherwise known as ‘predecessor accounting’). The principles used
by the Group are as follows:

- The Group does not restate assets and liabilities to their fair values. Instead, the Group
incorporates the assets and liabilities at the amounts recorded in the books of the combined
companies;

- No goodwill arises in predecessor accounting. Differences between the purchase consideration
and the nominal value of company’s equity acquired are not goodwill, because they are not based
on the fair values of both the consideration given and the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired. Instead, the differences are included in equity and presented within the retained
earnings (accumulated deficit) in the balance sheet;

- The principles in IAS 27 apply in the application of the predecessor method of accounting and,
therefore, results are incorporated from the date the new parent obtains control. The
corresponding amounts for the previous year are not restated because the combination did not
occur until the current year.
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2.2 Consolidation (continued)
Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results and of the net assets of a subsidiary, including the
fair value adjustments, which is attributable to interests which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the
Group. Non-controlling interest forms a separate component of the Group’s equity.

Transactions with non-controlling interest

From 1 January 2010, the Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
Until 31 December 2009, transactions with share owners of non-controlling interests were treated as
transactions with third parties. Disposals to non-controlling interests resulted in gains and losses for the
Group that were recorded in the income statement. Purchases from non-controlling interests resulted in
goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

2.3 Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Lithuanian Litas (LTL), which is the functional currency
of the Company and the Group.

The litas is pegged to the euro at an exchange rate of LTL 3.4528 = EUR 1
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the statement of comprehensive income within “finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within “other operating
expenses”.

Group comparies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:
~  Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that balance sheet;
~  Income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions);
-~ All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.
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2.4

2.5

2.6

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of buildings and structures, vehicles, machinery, other non-current
tangible assets. Property, plant and equipment is carried at its historical cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off the cost of assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful life as follows:

Buildings and structures 8 - 15 years
Vehicles 6 — 10 years
Machinery 5 years
Other non-current tangible assets 3 -6 years

Major additions, modifications and improvements expenditure relating to the flight equipment for aircraft
leased are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining lease period of the aircraft. Major improvements
performed for leased aircraft are capitalized leasehold improvements and depreciated over the period till the
next improvement or during the useful life of certain asset. Leasehold improvements are classified as other
non-current tangible assets.

The assets’ residual value and useful lives are reviewed periodically and adjusted if appropriate.

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

When property is retired or otherwise disposed, the cost and related depreciation are removed from the
financial statements and any related gains or losses are included in the profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Other non-current intangible assets

Intangible assets expected to provide economic benefit to the Group and the Company in future periods have
finite useful life and are valued at acquisition cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated

impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line method to allocate the cost of intangible
asset over estimated benefit period as follows:

Licenses 3 - 5 years
Software 3 - 5years
Other non-current intangible assets 1 -4 years

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the Group, and that will probably generate economic benefits exceeding
costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets.

Directly attributable costs, which are incurred to comply with the requirements of certification authority in
order to obtain the Air Operator’s Certificate (hereinafter - AOC) are capitalised as part of the commercial
license. Such expenses include aircraft basic and supplemental rent expenses, aircraft insurance expenses,
preparation of aircraft technical documentation expenses, rent and maintenance of premises expenses,
employee related expenses and crew training expenses, that have been incurred during the period of the
submission of the application for an initial issue of an AOC and the date of receipt of the AOC.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into one of four measurement categories: loans and receivables,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity investments and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

During the current period the Group did not hold any financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held
to maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are classified as
‘trade and other receivables’ in the balance sheet. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there

is objective evidence that a financial assets is impaired. Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in
Note 3.1.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates in the separate financial statements of the Company

Investments in subsidiaries that are included in the separate financial statements of the Company are
accounted at cost less impairment provision. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration arising
from contingent consideration amendments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-
out (FIFO) method. The cost of inventories comprises purchase price, taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the Group from the tax authorities), transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of inventories. Net realizable value is the estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the applicable selling expenses. Inventories that are no longer appropriate for sale are written off.
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211

212

213

2.14

2.15

2.16

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognized in the profit or loss. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against in the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet. Bank overdrafts are subtracted from the cash and cash
equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows.

Invested capital

The Company did not exist until 23 August 2010, and did not become the parent company of the Group until
30 September 2010. Therefore it is not meaningful to show share capital or an analysis of reserves for the
Group before 30 September 2010. Invested capital represents the difference between the cumulative
investment in the entities which form the combined Group and any non-controlling interest (being interest
not controlled by the holding company of the Initial Group) which is disclosed as a separate element of
equity. Details of invested capital’s structure and movements were included in Note 22.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are stated at their par value and classified as equity.

Where the Company or its subsidiaries purchase the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares), in the
Company’s and the Group’s financial statements the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes), is deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable incremental transaction cost and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to controlling equity shareholders of
the Group by the number of ordinary shares of the Company outstanding after the Pre-IPO Reorganisation
(see Note 1). The net profit for the year attributable to controlling equity shareholders of the Group has been
calculated assuming that the equity ownership structure which was established after the Pre-IPO
Reorganisation as at 30 September 2010 has been in place during the whole period presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in ordinary course of
business. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not,

they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. Other borrowing costs are expensed. The capitalising of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use are complete.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Grants relating to expenses and purchase of property, plant and equipment

Grants are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities and
are credited to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets. Grants
relating to the expenses are included in non-current liabilities and are credited to the profit or loss on basis to
match the appropriate expenses.

Accounting for leases

a) Accounting for leases where the Group is the lessee

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in

long-term payables except for installments due within 12 months which are included in current liabilities.

The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term.
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2.20

2.21

2.22

Accounting for leases (continued)

b) Accounting for leases where the Group is the sub - lessor

Rental income from operating sub —lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.
c) Accounting for leases where the Group is the lessor

Operating leases

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the asset is included in the balance sheet based on the
nature of the asset. They are depreciated over their expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar
assets. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expenses for the period comprise current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In
this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Profit for 2010 is taxable at a rate of 15% (2009: 20%) in accordance with Lithuanian regulatory legislation on
taxation. Profit for 2010 is taxable at a rate of 19% (2009: 19%) in accordance with Polish regulatory legislation
on taxation. Profit for 2010 is taxable at a rate of 27.5% in accordance with Italian regulatory legislation on
taxation.

The current income tax charge is calculated and accrued for in the financial statements on the basis of
information available at the moment of the preparation of the financial statements, and estimates of income
tax performed by the management in accordance with legislation on taxation in the country where the Group
operates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

According to Lithuanian legislation, tax losses accumulated as of 31 December 2010 are carried forward
indefinitely.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and only if the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue of the Group is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts, sales taxes. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount of revenue is not
considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2.22  Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of services

Revenue of the Group consists of passenger’s revenue, aircraft and aircraft components maintenance and
overhaul, training of aviation specialists, technical consulting, aircraft ground handling services and into-
plane fueling.

Passengers’ revenue, aircraft ground handling and into-plane fueling revenue is recognized as earned, -
upon completion of the air transportation or upon delivery of services to the customer.

Aircraft and aircraft components maintenance, training and technical consulting services are provided to
the customers on time and material basis or as a fixed-price contract, with contract generally ranging from
less than one year (single contract) to the long-term contract.

Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised under the percentage-of-completion method. Under this
method, revenue is generally recognised based on the services performed to date as a percentage of the
total services to be performed. Stage of completion is determined with a reference to the proportion that
man hours worked to date bear to the estimated total man hours per contract.

Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion
over the use of the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not occur until the products have been shipped to the specified
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either the customer
has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group have objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income.

Interest income on loans granted are classified as ,,other income”, while interest income on cash and cash
equivalents are classified as ,finance income” in the consolidated statement of the comprehensive
income.

2.23  Employee benefits
Social security contributions

The Group pays social security contributions to the state Social Security Fund (the Fund) on behalf of its
employees based on the defined contribution plan in accordance with the local legal requirements. A
defined contribution plan is a plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into the Fund and
will have no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the Fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all emplovees benefits relating to emplovee service in the current and prior
period. The social security contributions are recognized as an expense on an accrual basis and are
included within employee related expenses.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses based on predefined targets. The Group
recognises related liability where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2.23

2.24

31

Employee benefits (continued)
Supplementary health insurance

The Group paid supplementary health insurance contributions to the insurance company on behalf of its
employees. Supplementary health insurance for employees is the possibility to get health care and health
improvement services in a selected health care institution. The supplementary health insurance
contributions are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee’s employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal
or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as
financial liabilities at the date the guarantee is issued. Liabilities arising from financial guarantee
contracts are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at the higher of the expected
liability under the guarantee and the amount initially recognised less any cumulative amortisation. The
fair value of the financial guarantee is determined the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligation.

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimize potential adverse effects of the financial performance of the Group.

Risk management is carried out by Group’s top management close cooperation with the management of
shareholders. Top management meetings are held to discuss overall risk management and analyze each case, as
well as actions to cover specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investing
excess liquidity.

Market risk

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures primarily with respect to US Dollar (USD). Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities.

For calculation of foreign exchange risk’s sensitivity trade and other receivables and trade and other

payables, denominated at US-dollars are multiplied by reasonably possible change of EUR (to which LTL is
pegged) to US dollars. Reasonable possible change is provided in the table below:
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3.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Reasonably possible change of EUR to US dollars 9% 2% -

At 31 December 2010 post-tax profit for the year would have been LTL 1 631 thousand (2009: LTL 312
thousand) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of US dollar-
denominated trade and other receivables and trade and other payables.

Foreign exchange risk is controlled by monitoring the foreign currency exposure of its purchase contracts
and lease commitments. The Group seeks to reduce its foreign rate exchange exposure through a policy of
matching possible receipts and payments in each individual currency.

(b) Price risk

The Group is not exposed to price risk of financial instruments since it does not possess any material
financial instruments that could be sensitive to such risk.

(ci) Cash flowe and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from short-term and long-term bank borrowings and finance lease
liabilities at floating interest rates. The Group is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk as loans granted
to related parties and interest free deposit placed as a guarantee for lease of aircraft are accounted at
amortized cost and are with fixed interest rate.

Borrowings received at variable interest rates and denominated in the LTL, EUR currencies expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2010 and 2009 Group's non-current borrowings at variable rate of
6 month EURIBOR plus fixed margin were denominated in EUR, bank overdraft at variable rate of 6 months
VILIBOR plus fixed margin was denominated in LTL and finance lease liabilities at variable rate of 6 months
EURIBOR plus fixed margin was denominated in EUR.

For calculation of interest rate risk’s sensitivity interest expenses on borrowings, received at variable interest
rates, are multiplied by possible interest rate change (hereinafter , reasonable shift”), which are prescribed
by the Group. Possible interest rate change are provided in the table below:

Currency of borrowings Reasonable shift
LTL 4.00 %
EUR 1.00 %

The presumable interest rate change creates acceptable impact on Group’s annual profit as well as equity
and makes LTL 170 thousand in 2010 (2009: LTL 163 thousand) impact on profit or loss.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks, financial institutions,
shareholders and their related parties, lessor as well as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions. Credit risks are controlled by the application of
credit terms and monitoring procedures.

The Group’s procedures are in force to ensure that services are sold only to customers with an

appropriate credit history and do not exceed acceptable credit exposure limit. Cash transactions are
limited to high credit quality financial institutions.
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Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Maximunt exposure of credit risk
The table below summarises all credit risk exposures relating to on-balance sheet items of the Group.
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements:
GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010

Trade receivables (Note 19) 29174 11 389 -
Security deposit with lessor (Note 19) 5296 2746 -
Other receivables (Note 19) 730 430 -
Loans to related parties (Notes 19, 32) 644 1774 73
Other receivables from related parties (Note 19) 490 - -
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 19,
31) 180 30 347
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) 10713 5909 4

46 737 22278 424

(b) Financial assets neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables and trade receivables from related parties

The Group’s customers do not have external credit ratings, however the management of the Group
measures credit quality of trade receivables and trade receivables from related parties based on the period
of relationship with certain debtor. Two groups are distinguished: new customers/related parties (period of
relationship less than 6 months) and old customers/related parties (more than 6 months).

For analysis of credit quality of neither past due not impaired trade receivables and trade receivables from
related parties based see the table below:

Group 1: new customers/related parties (less than 6 month: 1083 406 301
Group 2: old customers/related parties (more than 6 month 12 981 2643 -
14 064 3049 301

Cash and cash equivalents (assessed in accordance with long-term borrowings ratings®)

All cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as of the periods presented are neither past due, nor
impaired. The Group chooses the banks and financial institutions with a Fitch rating not lower than D.

See the table below for analysis of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents according to the credit quality.

AA- 1182 2143 -
A+ 4827 492 4
A 2 645 - -
A- 107 344 -
B+ 758 624 -
B 633 2303 -
other 561 3 -

10 713 5909 4

* - external long term credit ratings set by international agencies Standarts & Poors as at August 2010 and FitchRatings as at March
2010/2011.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Security deposit with lessor, loans to related parties

Security deposit with lessor and loans to related parties held by the Group as of the periods presented are
neither past due nor impaired. The Group does not analyse these financial assets according to credit
quality.

(c) Financial assets past due but not impaired

Trade receivables that are past due up to 6 months and for which no evident impairment indicator is
identified by the Group are classified as past due but not impaired. Trade receivables overdue more that 6
months may be considered as not impaired if the Group has evidence that the amounts due will be

repaid.

The ageing of past due, but not impaired trade receivables is as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Overdue up to 3 months 12 853 2029 46
overdue from 4 to 6 months 1390 5470 -
overdue over 6 months 1047 871 -
15290 8370 46

(d) Impaired financial assets

Trade and other receivables for which the Group has identified evident impairment indicator irrespective
of the payment delay period are considered as impaired receivables. Evident impairment indicators
include significant financial difficulties of the debtor or other events that significantly increase the risk of
default on a receivable amount. The impairment of trade and other receivables is performed going
individually through the customers list and assessing the expectation of recovery.

Impaired trade and other receivables — gross amount 1420 2855 -
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (1420) (2 855) -
Impaired trade and other receivables — net amount - - -

Movements on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade receivables (including trade receivables
from related parties):

At 1 January 2855 4 858 -
Provision for trade receivables impairment 1420 2892 -
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (2855) (4895) -
At 31 December 1420 2855 -
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
other group companies. Liquidity risk is managed by the General Managers of entities of the Group in close
cooperation with the Company to maintain a minimum required liquidity position.
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3.1  Financial risk factors (continued)

As at 31 December 2010 current liabilities of the Company and three subsidiaries of the Group, which
were established in the year of 2010, exceeded current assets, Management of the Group believes that this
will not have any impact on the ability of the Company and subsidiaries of the Group to continue as
going concern. In addition the parent company — Avia Solutions Group AB - is able to provide with
financial support to enable subsidiaries to continue in operation for at least thirteen months from the date
of financial statements, if needed. Actions that management of the Company is going to take to ensure the
ability of the Company to continue as a going concern are summarized in Note 4.

The Group's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of
liquid assets necessary to meet these. The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Trade and other
payables and deposits received due within/after 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

Lessthan  Between1-2 Over
GROUP 1 year years 2 years

31 December 2010
Borrowings from shareholders and their related 13 609 706 5539
Bank loans 11769 1599 3194
Security deposits received 947 500 939
Finance lease liabilities 702 1360 -
Trade and other payables 37081 247 1499
64108 4412 19628

31 December 2009
Borrowings from related parties 5420 2274 8007
Bank loans 3494 1862 4432
Security deposits received 2111 - -
Finance lease liabilities 798 702 1332
Trade and other payables 30458 832 3131
40170 5670 16 902

COMPANY

31 December 2010
Borrowings from related parties 4911 . .
Trade and other payables 608 - -
5519 - -

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including
‘current and non-current borrowings’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
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3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

% Avia Solutions Group

The Group’s strategy is to reduce the gearing ratio and to maintain it within 45% to 55%.

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010

Total borrowings (Note 23) 35296 23 904 4698
Less: cash and cash equivalents (10713) (5909) 4)
Net debt 24583 17 995 4694
Total equity 25051 7015 4287
Total capital 49 634 25 010 8982
Gearing ratio 50% 72% 52%

Pursuant to the Lithuanian Law on Companies the authorised share capital of a public limited liability
company and private limited liability company must be not less than LTL 150,000 and LTL 10,000,
respectively, and the shareholders’ equity should not be lower than 50 per cent of the entity’s registered share
capital. As at 31 December 2010 two Group companies did not comply with these requirements.

According to the Lithuanian Law on Companies, a general meeting of shareholders to rectify the situation
must be convened. In the case, if the general meeting of shareholders did not rectify the situation within six

3.3

months, an application to the court to reduce the authorised capital must be filed.
Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities for the disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the cash flows from each class of financial assets or financial liabilities.

Fair value of interest free security deposit with the lessor approximates its carrying value which was
calculated discounting nominal value of deposit using market interest rate. Loans to related parties were
granted close to the year end at market interest rates, therefore, their carrying value approximate fair value.
As at 31 December 2010 the fair value of loans received from related parties at fixed interest rates was
approximately LTL 1,5 million lower than their carrying value.

The fair value of bank borrowings and finance lease with variable rates approximates their carrying amount.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Significant Judgements

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Management also makes certain judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, in the process of applying the accounting policies. Judgments that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a
significant adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(1) Going concern assumptions
At the end of 2010, the Company’s current liabilities exceeded current assets by LTL 4.2 million.
Nevertheless, the Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a going concern principle, based

on assumption that it will continue operations in the foreseeable future.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Significant Judgements (continued)

As at the date of preparation of these financial statements the Company has issued additional 1,473,333
ordinary shares with a par value LTL 1 each for issue price of PLN 52. Following the increase of the share
capital total number of shares amounts to 5,893,333 with par value LTL 1 each. On 3 March 2011 shares of
the Company were introduced to trading at Warsaw Stock Exchange (see Notes 1, 34). Management
believes that sufficient financial resources will be available to the Company to continue as a going concern.

(b) C-check costs accruals

During the aircraft lease term and until the lease contract termination date, the Group (lessee) has the
obligation, at its expense, to maintain and repair the aircraft in accordance with the maintenance program.
C-check expenses are incurred once in 18 — 24 months. Accruals for such expenses is based on an average
cost of all C-Check per flight hour and recognised in the profit or loss on straight-line basis.

(c) Premises and training simulators lease payments accruals

Under the terms of two aircraft hangars, training building and training simulator lease operating
agreement, various rentals were payable during the lease term and until the lease contract termination
date. Lease payments have been apportioned to ensure that they are charged to the comprehensive income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(d) Related-party transactions

In the normal course of business the Group enters into transactions with their related parties. These
transactions are priced predominantly at market rates. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions
are priced at market or non-market rates, where there is no active market for such transactions. The basis
for judgement is pricing for similar types of transactions with unrelated parties.

(e) Income taxes

Tax authorities have a right to examine accounting records of the Group at anytime during the 5 year
period after the current tax year and account for additional taxes and fines. In the opinion of the Group’s
management, currently there are no circumstances that might result in a potential material liability in this
respect to the Group.

(f) Earnings per Share

While calculating Earnings per Share in these financial statements the Group has assumed that the equity
ownership structure which was established after the Pre-IPO Reorganisation as at 30 September 2010 and
the share capital issued by the Company during the Pre-IPO Reorganisation process has been in place
during the whole period presented in these consolidated financial statements. Such assumptions have been
made with the aim to present comparable and consistent historical Earnings per Share ratios for the periods
presented.

(g) Intangible assets

Costs that are directly attributable to obtain the AOC are recognized as intangible assets (Note 2.6). The
AOC expected to provide economic benefits to the Group in future periods are measured at acquisition
cost, which includes directly attributable expenses, as described in Note 2.6, less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line basis
over estimated economic benefit period of 5 years.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Significant Judgements (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

Estimates concerning useful lives of property, plant and equipment may change due to constant technology
advancement. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are disclosed Note 2.5 and depreciation
charge for the year is disclosed in Note 15. Increasing an asset’s expected useful life or its residual value
would result in a reduced depreciation charge. The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are
determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed on an annual basis for
appropriateness. The lives are based on historical experiences with similar assets as well as anticipation of
future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology. Most of property, plant and
equipment of the Group comprise buildings and vehicles.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on the services provided, and
has five reportable operating segments:

Charter Operations

The charter operations segment includes carriage of passengers by charter flights.

Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO)

The aircraft maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) segment is involved in aircraft and aircraft
components’ maintenance, repair, overhaul, engineering, spare parts and consumable sale, technical
personnel training.

Aircraft Ground Handling and Fuelling

The aircraft ground handling and fuelling segment is involved aircraft handling, passengers servicing,
tickets sale and into-plane fuelling,

Pilot and Crew Training
The pilot and crew training segment is involved in full scope of integrated flight training solutions
Unallocated Sales

The Unallocated sales include sales of management services, which cannot be attributed to the other
segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. The segment performance is analysed on

monthly basis based on internal reports provided to the chief operating decision maker of the Group.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 2.

Management analyses the activities of the Group both from geographic and business perspective.
From business perspective the Management used to analyse Group sales volume and gross profit (loss)

based on businesses the Group is involved in (according to Group companies’ activities), referred to as
segments. Gross profit (loss) is a measure of segment profit or loss for management analysis purposes.

31



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB
SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL 000 unless othertwise stated)

@ Avia Solutions Group

Segment information (continued)

Operating expenses, which are directly related to the operating segments (including administration
employee related expenses, rent and maintenance of administration premises, depreciation and
amortization of non-current assets, used for administrative purposes, business travel expenses, related to
sales, consultation expenses, office administrative expenses and other), and the amount of impairment
losses, recognised in profit or loss during the period, are allocated to the particular segments. Other
operating expenses, indirectly related to the operating segments, are not allocated to the operating
segments.

Financial activities and income taxes are managed on a Group level and are not allocated to the operating
segments as well. Management also regularly reviews capital investments on segment basis therefore
additions to non-current assets has been separately disclosed according to each operating segment.

Geographically, Management separately considers operations in Lithuania, Estonia and Poland by sales
volume depending on where the Group’s companies are located.

Transfer prices between business segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties. Segment revenue, segment expense and segment result include transfers
between business segments. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation. The following table presents
revenues and profit (loss) and assets and liabilities information according to the Group’s business segments
for the nine-month period ended 31 December 2010:

Charter Afrcraft Aircraft  Pilot and Unallo- Inter- Total
operations maintenance, ground crew cated segment  continuing
repair and handling training elimina- operations
overhaul and tions
MRO) fuelling
Year ended 31 December 2010
Revenue
Sales to external customers 157 360 76 788 57 621 12494 - - 304 263
Other income 7173 140 - 26 - - 7 339
Inter-segment sales 4620 8 627 17 660 404 289 (31600) -
Total revenue 169 153 85 555 75 281 12 924 289 (31 600) 311 602
Cost of sales (159 289) (58 322) (67 074) ( 8 553) (177) 29 875 (263 540)
Segment gross profit 9864 27 233 8207 4371 112 (1725) 48 062
Impairment of receivables,
inventories (1295) (108) (17) - - (1 420)
Other operating expenses (see
details in the table below} (22797)
Operating profit 23 845
Finance costs - net (3175)
Profit before income tax 20 670
Income tax (2879)
Net profit for the period 17 791
As at 31 December 2010
Segment assets 28 806 56 412 23 542 4577 1162 114 499
Segment liabilities (31879) (134 200) (14 158) (4138) (5073) (89 448)
Acquisition of non-current assets 1269 4768 2265 653 336 9291
Depreciation and amortization 118 3635 891 224 10 4 878

32



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS % Avia Solutions Group
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL '000 unless otherwise stated)

5 Segment information (continued)

The following table presents revenues and profit (loss) and assets and liabilities information according to the
Group's business segments for the year ended 31 December 2009:

Charter Aircraft Aifrcraft Pilot and  Inter-segment Total

operations  maintenance, ground crew eliminations  continuing

GROUP repair and handling and training operations
overhaul fuelling

Year ended 31 December 2009
Revenue
Sales to external customers 155 905 62 459 10822 4172 233 358
Other income 196 - 21 - 217
Inter-segment sales 3350 7288 15509 323 (26 470) -
Total revenue 159 451 69 747 26 352 4495 (26 470) 233575
Cost of sales ( 146 933) (54 112) (23 255) (2577) 25 695 (201 182)
Segment gross profit 12518 15 635 3097 1918 (775) 32393
Impairment of receivables,
inventories (811) (1548) (410) - - (2769)
Other operating expenses (see
details in the table below) (21479
Operating profit 8 145
Finance costs - net (1810)
Profit (loss) before income tax 6335
Income tax (1685)
Net profit (loss) for the year 4650
As at 31 December 2009
Segment assets 18201 39293 11 588 201 71093
Segment liabilities (20 247) (31910) (9937) (1984) (64 078)
Acquisition of non-current assets 45 1646 213 102 2006
Depreciation and amortisation 46 3253 1206 195 4700

The Group’s other operating expenses indirectly related to the operating segments detailed below:

GROUP
2010 2009
Administration employee related expenses 10,821 13,188
Consultation expenses 2,720 2,861
Rent and maintenance of administration premises 1,868 2,187
Depreciation and amortization of assets related to administration 567 426
Other operating expenses indirectly related to the operating segments 6,821 2,817
Other operating expenses 22,797 21,479

The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical location of subsidiaries on 31 December
2010 and 31 December 2009 detailed below:

GROUP
2010 2009
Lithuania 257977 201177
Estonia 29109 32181
Poland 17177 -
304 263 233 358
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5 Segment information (continued)

@ Avia Solutions Group

The segment’s sales to external customers are derived from the following single customers (the customers

whose sales revenue exceed 10 per cent of total sales revenue of that segment in any of the years):

The charter operations segment

Customer B
Customer A
Customer Q
Customer D
Customer C
Other customers

The aircraft ground handling and fuelling segment

Customer ]
Customer K
Customer L
Other customers

The aircraft maintenance, repair and overhaul (MRO) segment

Customer H
Customer E
Customer F/O
Other customers

The pilot and crew training segment

Customer R
Customer S
Customer N
Customer M
Customer O/F
Other customers

GROUP
2010 2009

39,015 39,771
35,192 45,727
16,778 10,442
16,547 14,587
3,860 23,274
45,968 22,104
157,360 155,905
12,450 251
3,989 3,170
2,159 1,320
39,023 6,081
57,621 10,822
18,411 2,302
9,096 13,763
8,347 6,541
40,934 35,047
76,788 62,459
3,964 -
1,524 -
1,068 1,107
963 1,229
339 568
11,192 2,375
12,494 4,172

The Group's sales to external customers are derived from the following single customers (the customers
whose sales revenue exceed 10 per cent of total sales revenue of the Group in any of the years):

Customer Identity of segment/segments
Customer B Passengers carriage

Customer A Passengers carriage

Other customers All business segments
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Revenue

Aiircraft fuel revenue

Passengers’ revenue

Aircraft maintenance Revenue
Aircraft and aircrew lease

Training and consulting revenue
Revenue of services resold

Spare parts and consumable revenue
Aircraft ground services

Other income

Late payment penalties
Interests income on loans

Employee related expenses

Wages and salaries
Social insurance expenses

Number of employees at the end of year

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation of tangible assets (note 15)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16)

Other operating expenses

Business Travel Expenses

Transportation and Related Expenses
Insurance expenses

Consultation Expenses

Employee Lease Expenses

Foreign exchange loss on operating activities
Marketing and Sales Expenses

Rent and maintenance of training simulators
Office Administrative Expenses
Communications Expenses

Bank services

IT expenses

Audit expenses

Other Expenses

@ Avia Solutions Group

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010
92 783 47 344 -
70 665 96 028 -
51185 54 304 -
44777 17 614 -
14172 4834 289
12412 4149 -
10 664 339 -
7 605 5689
304 263 233 358 289
7 225 - .
114 217 -
7 339 217 -
29744 30839 141
9817 9689 43
39561 40528 184
678 567 8
4290 4433 10
588 267 -
4 878 4700 10
4 838 3092 12
3725 3759 25
3708 2786 -
2311 2 861 73
1631 1731 -
1361 (136) 7
1341 942 12
964 577 -
794 634 5
668 470 5
422 408 1
404 413
182 120 -
1875 1693 7
24224 19 350 147
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@ Avia Solutions Group

GROUP COMPANY

11 Other gain - net

Sales of inventory and assets
Net fair value of acquiree’s net assets over cost
Costs of inventory and assets sold

2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010

12 Finance income and costs

Discounting of security deposit received
Unwinding of discounted deposits

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents
Late payment interest - revenue

Finance income

Unwinding of discounted borrowings
Interest expenses on borrowings

Late payment interest - costs

Discounting of security deposit placed
Foreign exchange loss on financing activities
Other finance costs

Finance costs

Finance costs ~ net

13 Income tax

Current income tax
Deferred income tax (Note 26)

Total income tax expenses

90 699 -
) - -
(72) (403) -
13 296 -
557 - -
179 134 -
78 86 -

- 53 -

814 273 -
2153 448 -
1435 910 83
291 563 -
100 124 -

6 34 -

4 4 -
3989 2083 83
(3175) (1810 (83)
2963 1576 -
(84) 109 @)
2879 1685 @)

Domestic income tax is calculated at 15 per cent (2009: 20 per cent) of the annual profit for the year, in Poland
income tax ~ 19 per cent, in Italy - 27.5 per cent. The annual profit earned by companies located in Estonia is
not taxed. The tax on the Group’s profit (loss) before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the basic tax rate as follows:

Profit (loss) before tax

20669 6335 (135)

Less: annual profit (loss) before tax earned by the
entity located in Estonia
Profit (loss) before tax

1061 (2035

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 15% (2009: 20%)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 19% (2009 - 19%)
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 27.5%

Tax effects of:

- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

- Non-taxable incomes

- Deferred tax assets not recognised on tax losses
- Effect of changes of tax rate

- Adjustment in respect of prior year

- Unrecognised deferred tax asset in prior years

Total income tax expenses
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14 Earnings per share

@ Avia Solutions Group

The following reflects the income and adjusted share data used in EPS computations. The assumptions used
in calculation of weighted average number of ordinary shares and profit (loss) attributable to equity holders

were explained in Notes 1, 2.13 and 4.

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010
Profit (loss) for the year 17791 4 650 (133)
Less: profit (loss) attributable to minority interests
calculated in accordance with the structure as at 31
December 2010 25 (172) -
Profit (loss) attributable to equity ownership
holders of the Company calculated in accordance
with shareholders structure as at 31 December 2010 17 816 4478 (133)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(thousand) 4420 4420 4420
EPS - basic and diluted (in LT1L) 4.03 1.01 (0.03)
15  Property, plant and equipment
Buildings  Machiner  Vehicle Other  Prepayme Total
THE GROUP and v s tangible ntfs to
structure fixed tangible
s assets assets
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2009 15 510 4 607 6190 2 849 - 29 156
Additions - 89 188 546 - 823
Disposals - (63) (42) (101) - (206)
Write-offs - - - - - -
Depreciation charge (1116) (1429 (784) (1104) - (4433)
Closing net book amount as at 31 December 14 394 3204 5552 2190 - 25 340
2009
At 31 December 2009
Cost 16720 6 815 6459 4243 - 34 237
Accumulated amortisation (2326) (3611 (907) (2053) - (8897)
Net book amount 14 394 3204 5552 2190 - 25 340
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2010 14 394 37204 5552 2 190 - 25 340
Additions . 3498 1686 2034 997 8215
Disposals - (19 - (48) - (67)
Write-offs - (106) 62 44 - .
Depreciation charge (1118) (1448 (341} {1185) - {4 290)
Closing net book amount as at 31 December
2010 13 278 5129 6 759 3035 997 29 198
At 31 December 2010
Cost 16 720 10675 10 305 6952 997 45 649
Accumulated amortisation (3442) (5546) (3546)  (3917) - (16 451)
Net book amount 13 278 5129 6759 3035 997 29 198
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15  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

THE COMPANY

Opening net book amount as at 31 August 2010
Additions

Depreciation charge

Closing net book amount as at 31 December 2010

At 31 December 2010

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
Net book amount

% Avia Solutions Group

Machinery Other tangible Total
fixed assets
64 265 329
(2) (8) (10)
62 257 319
64 265 329
2 (8) (10)
62 257 319

As at 31 December 2010 buildings of the Group with the carrying amounts of LTL 13 278 thousand were

pledged to the bank as collateral for borrowings (Note 23).

Leased assets, where the Group is a lessee under finance lease contracts comprised as follows as at 31

December:

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Cost ~ capitalised finance lease
Vehicles 2155 3477 -
Machinery 939 54 -
3094 3531 -
Accumulated depreciation
Vehicles (526) (498) -
Machinery (298) (5) -
(824) (503) -
Net book value 2270 3028 -
16  Intangible assets
Licences  Software Other  Prepayments Total
THE GROUP intangible r(elatmg to
assets intangible
assets
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2009 181 177 1 960 1319
Additions 171 1012 - - 1183
Reclassifications - 960 - (9603 -
Depreciation charge (64) (202) 65} - (267)
Closing net book amount as at 31 December 2009 288 1947 - - 2235
At 31 December 2009
Cost 370 2238 1 - 2609
Accumulated amortisation (82) (2913 [4)) - (374)
Net book amount 288 1947 - - 2235
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2010 288 1947 - - 2235
Additions 1011 65 - - 1076
Depreciation charge (164} (424) - - (588)
Closing net book amount as at 31 December 2010 1135 1588 - - 2723
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16  Intangible assets (continued)

Licences  Software Other  Prepayments Total
THE GROUP intangible felatllwg to
assets intangible
assets
At 31 December 2010
Cost 1364 2311 - - 3675
Accumulated amortisation (229) (723) - - (952)
Net book amount 1135 1588 - - 2723
THE COMPANY Software Total
Opening net book amount as at 31 August 2010 - -
Additions 7 7
Closing net book amount as at 31 December 2010 7 7
At 31 December 2010
Cost 7 7
Accumulated amortisation - -
Net book amount 7 7
GROUP COMPANY
Period since
2010 2009 incorporation till

31 December 2010
17 Financial assets

At the beginning of the period - - -
Purchase consideration of the newly issued shares

of the Subsidiaries (Note 1) - - 4165
Purchase consideration of the acquisition of

remaining 10 percent of the share capital of the

Subsidiaries (Note 1) - - 3990
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31) - - 30
Subsidiary established - - 10
At the end of the period - - 8195
GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010

18 Inventories

Spare parts and materials 8213 6684 -
Less: provision for impairment of spare parts - - -
Spare parts and materials - net 8213 6684 -
Aircraft tuel 1764 1149 -
Goods for sale 1637 932 -
Goods in transit 550 234 -
Other inventories 155 103 -

12 319 9102 -
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GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
19 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 30480 13059 -
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (1306) (1670) -
Trade receivables - net 29174 11 389 -
Receivables from related parties 197 1215 347
Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables from related parties (17) (1185) -
Receivables from related parties - net (Note 32) 180 30 347
Security deposit with lessor 5406 2935 -
Discounting of security deposit (at 6 per cent) (110) (189) -
Security deposit - net 5296 2746 -
Other receivables 826 430 -
Less: provision for impairment of other receivables (96) - -
Other receivables - net 730 430 -
Prepayments 8182 3912 4
Deferred charges 7103 2409 576
Amount due from customers for contract work
(Note 20) 2937 1486 -
VAT receivables 1449 1591 65
Loans to related parties 644 1774 73
Other receivables from related parties 490 - -
Deferred charges to related parties 24 67 -
Prepayments from related parties 14 - -
56 223 25834 1 066
Less non-current portion : (1920) (4200) -
Current portion: 54 303 21634 1066

All non-current receivables are due in 2012,

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

EUR 19 049 5392 40
US dollars 6 604 4464 -
LTL 2 659 1561 307
PLN 783 2 -
EEK 166 -
Other 93 - -

29 354 11419 347

20 Contracts in progress

Contract costs incurred and recognised profits (less

3171 1486 -
losses) to date
Advances received on contracts in progress (234) - -
Amounts due from customers on contracts in 2937 1 486 )
progress
21 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents 10713 5909 4
Bank overdraft (707) ( 1493) -

10 006 4416 4
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22 Invested capital

Share Merger  Currency  Retained Invested
capital of reserve translation  earnings capital
the Group differences
companies

Opening balance of invested capital 429 16 - 366 811
as at 1 January 2009
Net profit (loss) for the year 4619 4619
Change in minority interests 8 - 284 292
Increase in share capital of the Group
companies 1289 - - - 1289
Paid-up share capital in newly
established Group companies 4 - - - 4
Closing balance of invested capital
as at 31 December 2009 /1 January
2010 1730 16 - 5269 7015
Transfer to legal reserve - 10 - (10) -
Elimination of share capital of the
Group companies (340) - - - (340)
Reallocation of share premium of
Group’s Company (1 289) - - 1289 -
Allocation of net assets to non-
controlling interests (101) - - (240) (341)
Reallocation to other reserves - (26) - (6 308) (6334
Closing balance of invested capital '
as at 31 December 2009 - - - - -

Legal reserves of the Group companies have been transferred to merger reserve upon pre-IPO
Reorganization.

GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 2010

23 Borrowings

Non-current
Borrowings from related parties 5082 7824 -
Bank borrowings 4284 5713 -
Finance lease liabilities 1214 1807 -
10 580 15344 -

Current

Borrowings from related parties 12793 4912 4698
Bank borrowings 10 555 1548 -
Bank overdraft 707 1493 -
Finance lease liabilities 661 607 -
24716 8 560 4 698
Total borrowings 35296 23904 4 698

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

US dollars 16420 2038 -
LTL 10585 12225 4698
EUR 8291 9 641 -

35296 23 904 4 698
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23

24

Borrowings (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s borrowings (excluding finance lease) into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date:

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Less than 1 year 24 653 § 560 4698
Between 1 and 5 years 6938 11420 -
Over 5 years 3705 3924 -
35296 23904 4 698

The weighted average interest rates (%) at the balance sheet date (excluding finance lease) were as follows:

Borrowings from related parties 7.50% 7.03% 8%
Bank overdraft 7.00% 8.72% -
Finance lease liabilities 5.84% 2.65% -
Bank borrowings 3.51% 5.62% -

Finance lease liabilities - minimum lease payments:

Not later than 1 year 702 798 -
After 1 year but not later than 5 years 1360 2033 -
After 5 years - - -
Less: future finance lease charges (187) (417) -
Present value of finance lease liabilities 1875 2414 -

Present value of finance lease liabilities:

Not later than 1 year 598 607 -
After 1 year but not later than 5 years 1277 1807 -
After 5 years - - -

1875 2414 -

Trade and other payables

Trade payables 19 462 12 832 243
Accruals for c-check, hangar lease payments and 121
other accrued expenses 8474 9293
Amounts payable to related parties (Note 32) 3860 10 009 176
Salaries and social security payable 2904 1978 59
Provision for maintenance costs 2151 - -
Deferred revenue 1805 - -
Other payables 170 308 9
38 826 34 420 608
Less: non-current portion (1746) (3963) -
Current portion 37 080 30 457 608

The Group established a provision as of 31 December 2010 for aircraft maintenance costs. The total amount
of provision will be used till 30 June of 2011.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:
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GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
24 Trade and other payables (continued)
LTL 17 989 18 470 454
US dollars 11514 11 157 -
EUR 4771 4299 154
EEK 1411 418 -
PLN 1183 9 -
Other currencies 1958 67 -
38 826 34420 418
25 Security deposits received
Security deposits repayable after one year at
nominal value 9 896 - -
Less: discounting effect (at 7.06 % discounting rate) (516) - -
Security deposits repayable after one year 9 380 - -
Security deposits repayable within one year 947 2111 -
10 327 2111 -

Long-term sccurity deposit in amount of L'TL 9 396 at its nominal value serves as a security for the
performance by the lessee of its obligations under aircraft lease agreements. This security deposit is
denominated 11 USD.

Other long-term security deposit in amount of 1'TL 500 at its nominal value and all short-term security
deposits serve as a security for the performance by customers of their obligations under sales agreements of
charter flights. These security deposits are denominated in LTL and FUR.

26 Deferred income taxes

The gross movement in deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities accounts is &
follows:
GROU?P COMPANY
2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010

Deferred tax assets

At beginning of the period 1040 1149
Income statement credit (charge) (Note 13) 117 (109) 2
At end of year 1157 1040 2

Deferred tax liabilities

At beginning of the period - - -
Income statement credit (charge) (Note 13) (33) - -
At end of year (33) - -

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as the follows:

43



AVIA SOLUTIONS GROUP AB

SEPARATE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS @ Avia Solutions Grgup
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

(All tabular amounts are in LTL ‘000 unless otherwise stated)

26 Deferred income taxes (continued)
GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax to be recovered within 1 year 1053 446 2
Deferred income tax to be recovered after 1 year 104 594 -
1157 1040 2

Deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax to be recovered within 1 year (33) - -

Deferred income tax to be recovered after 1 year - - .
(33) - -

Deferred income tax asset for the year is recognised to the extent that the realization of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profit is probable.

The movement in differed tax assets and differed tax liabilities of the Group (prior to offsetting of balances)
during the three years is as follows:

Accumu Impair- Discoun-  Accruals Other Total
lated ment of  ting effect for accrued
GROUP - deferred tax assets X
taxable  receivables unused  expenses
losses vacation
At 31 December 2008 - - 40 559 550 1149
Charged / (credited) to the profit or
loss - 82 159 (427) 78 (109)
At 31 December 2009 - 82 199 132 628 1040
Charged / (credited) to the profit or
loss 505 71 (259) 26 (229) 117
At 31 December 2010 505 153 (60) 158 398 1157
Other Total
GROUP - deferred tax Habilities accrued
expenses
At 31 December 2009 . -
Charged / (credited) to the profit or loss (33) 33)
At 31 December 2010 (33) (33)

The movement in differed tax assets of the Company (prior to offsetting of balances) is as follows:

Accumulated Total

COMPANY - deferred tax assets
taxable losses

At 31 August 2010 - .
Charged / (credited) to the profit or loss 2 2
At 31 December 2010 2 2

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when differed income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.

Deferred income tax asset and liability related to the entities operating in Lithuania are calculated at 15%
rate (2009: 15% rate), in Poland - at 19% rate (2009: 19% rate), in Italy - at 27.5% rate. Due to the nature of the
taxation system, the companies registered in Estonia don't have any differences between the tax bases of
assets and their carrying amounts, no differed income tax assets and liabilities arise.
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GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
27  Financial instruments by category
Category — Loans and receivables
Trade receivables (Note 19) 29174 11389 -
Security deposit with lessor (Note 19) 5296 2746 -
Other receivables (Note 19) 730 430 -
Loans to related parties (Notes 19, 32) 644 1774 73
Other receivables from related parties (Note 19) 490 - -
Trade receivables from related parties (Notes 19,
32) 180 30 347
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) 10713 5909 4
46 737 22278 424
Category — financial linbilities measured at amortised
cost
Trade payables (Note 24) 19 462 12832 243
Borrowings from related parties (Note 23) 17 875 12736 4698
Bank loans (Note 23) 14 839 7261 -
Trade payables to related parties (Notes 24, 32) 3860 10 009 176
Finance lease liabilities (Note 23) 1875 2414 -
Bank overdraft (Notes 21, 23) 707 1493 -
Other payables (Note 24) 170 308 9
58 788 47 053 5126

28  Financial guarantees provided on behalf of Other Related Parties

In 2010 one company of the Group issued guarantee on behalf of other related party for bank loans
amounting to LTL 5 million as at 31 December 2010, related to the acquisition of aircraft. The liabilities
secured by these guarantees were also secured by pledge of aircraft owned by the related party.

Amounts as of
Date of issue Issued to On behalf of Valid till 2010.12.31, LTL

2010.04.02 DnB Nord Bank One of Other Initial Group Companies 2014.02.28 5 000 000

29  Operating lease

The Group leases aircraft, two aircraft hangars, training building, flight simulator, premises, commercial
vehicles and warehouse under operating lease agreements which expire between 2010 - 2021. The
operating lease expenditure charged to the profit or loss are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 Period since

incorporation till
31 December 2010

Aircraft 41 267 37 749 -
Aircraft hangars 3147 6 374 -
Premises 1376 1301 -
Flight simulator 796 780 -
Commercial vehicles 62 69 -
Warehouse 32 32 -

46 680 46 305 -
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29

30

31

Operating lease (continued)

Aircraft fleet of the Group held under operating lease at the end of December 2010 comprised of 5 Boeing
737-300, 1 Boeing 757-200 and 1 sub-leased to third parties Boeing 757-200. The aircraft operating lease
expenditure include aircraft supplemental rents to the lessor based on the actual flight hours (in 2010: LTL 10
946 thousand; in 2009: 1.T1. 12 061 thousand) and sub-lease payments (in 2010: L'TL 10 009 thousand; in 2009:
L'T1. 5 854 thousand).

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating leases are as follows:

GROUP COMPANY
2010 2009 2010
Not later than 1 year 28300 33071 55
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 82 525 99 370 82
Later than 5 years 20461 12 286 -
131 286 144 727 137

The amount of future aggregate minimum lease payments does not include supplemental rents to the lessor
as these payments are based on the actual flight hours. Future sublease payments in amount of LTL 27 247
thousand will be received under non-cancellable long-term sublease agreements in 2011-2015.

Management compensation

Following the pre-IPO reorganisation in September 2010 some members of the management of the Group
have acquired shares in the Group companies at their nominal value. According to the Shareholders
agreement, restrictions on selling of these shares during the two years time are imposed. The difference
between the estimated fair value of the shares acquired by the members of management and their nominal
value would be recognized as management compensation in profit or loss during the two year period.
According to the management estimate, total effect on profit or loss during the whole period would be LTL
1.8 million.

Business combination

On 19 November 2010, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of FLT Trading House UAB from a
third party. On 1 December 2010, the Company acquired 100% of the share capital of FL Technics Jets
UAB from a related party. Details of purchase consideration and assets and liabilities arising from the
acquisitions are as follows:

FL Technics Jets FLT Trading

UAB - acquiree’s House UAB -

carrying amount acquiree’s fair

value

Property, plant and equipment 2 -

Trade and other receivables 100 1,954

Cash and cash equivalents 66 7

Borrowings (395) (1,953)

Trade and other payables (55) (3)

Net assets acquired (282) 5
Excess of fair value of the acquiree’s net assets over cost (recognised

directly in equity) 302 -
Excess of fair value of the acquiree's net assets over cost (recognised

directly in profit or loss) - 5

Total purchase consideration - paid in cash 20 10
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31

32

Business combination (continued)

If the acquisition of FL Technics Jets UAB took place at the beginning of the year 2010, the revenue of the
Group for 2010 would have been greater by LTL 4 thousand and the net result would have been less by
LTL 206 thousand. The net loss of LTL 300 thousand was included in the Group's results for 2010 since the
acquisition date.

If the acquisition of new-established FLT Trading House UAB took place in May 2010, the revenue of the

Group for 2010 would have been greater by LTL 7 thousand and the net result would have been less by
LTL 5 thousand.

Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The ultimate parent company of the Group is ZIA Valda AB (hereinafter - the Ultimate Parent).
Transactions and balances with the Ultimate Parent and with Other Initial Group Companies are disclosed
below separately. Related parties also include other shareholders of the Group, subsidiaries of ZIA Valda
AB and other ZIA Valda AB related parties with which the Group is under common control (hereinafter —
Other Related Parties).

Most material transactions were performed with AviaAM Leasing AB Group companies (Other Initial
Group Companies), Nuomuva AB (Other Initial Group Companies) and VA Reals AB (Other Related
Parties). These transactions are disclosed separately below.

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December 2010

Sales of assets:

Other Initial Group Companies 193 61
Other Initial Group Companies 193 61

Sales of services to:

The Ultimate Parent 78 -
Other Initial Group Companies 913 2583 -
Other Related Parties 218 1642 289

1133 4303 289
Total sales of assets and services 1326 4303 289

Purchases of assets from:

Other Initial Group Companies 339 7 336
Other Related Parties 107 7 -
446 14 336
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32 Related party transactions {continued)

GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December
2010

Purchases of services from:
The Ultimate Parent 112 110 16
Other Initial Group Companies 22 927 27 277 -
Other Related Parties 5651 9412 98
28 690 36 799 114
Total purchases of assets and services 29 136 36 812 450

In year 2010 amount of purchases of premises lease services from VA Reals AB was LTL 4,101 thousand
(2009: LTL 7,507 thousand). In year 2010 amount of purchases of aircraft lease services from Nuomuva AB
was LTL 13,253 thousand (2009: LTL 25,341 thousand), from AviaAM Leasing AB Group companies was
LTL 8,775 thousand (2009: LTL O thousand).

GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 2010
Trade receivables from related parties
Trade receivables from ZIA valda AB - 7 -
Trade receivables from Other Initial Group
Companies 130 23 113
Other related parties 67 1185 234
Less: provision for impairment of receivables from
other related parties (17) (1185) -
Other related parties — net 50 - 234
Other trade receivables from related parties 490 -
Prepayments from ZIA Valda AB 3 -
Prepayments from Other Initial Group Companies 11 -

684 30 347

Individually impaired receivable relates to the customer that is in bankruptcy proceedings. The cost of
establishment of provision for impaired receivables has been included in the income statement.
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of
recovering additional cash and all appropriate documentation according to the legislations were
collected.

Payables and advances received from related parties

Amounts payable to the Ultimate Parent 37 3 37
Amounts payable to Other Initial Group
Lo 7 789 -
Companies 2518
Amounts payable to other related parties 1305 2217 140
3 860 10 009 177
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32 Related party transactions (continued)
GROUP COMPANY

2010 2009 Period since
incorporation till
31 December

2010
Loans received from related parties
Beginning of the period 12736 9980 -
Acquisition (Note 31) 395 - -
Loans received from the Other Initial Group
Companies / set-offs 13590 3115 4 697
Loans received from other related parties 4467 - -
Loan repayments to Other Initial Group
Companies ( 13 470) (779) -
Interest on loans charged (2010 — at 7.23%,
2009 - at 5.95%) 2946 501 83
Interest on loans repaid / set-offs (2347) (81) -
End of the period 18317 12736 4780
Less: non-current portion (5082) (7824) -
Current portion (including accrued interest
expense): 13235 4912 4 780
Loans to related parties
Beginning of the period 1774 659 -
Loans advanced to Other Initial Group
Companies 5186 1070 -
Loans advanced to other related parties 218 3270 73
Loan repayments received/set-offs from Other
Initial Group Companies (6231) (63) -
Loan repayments received/set-offs from other
related parties (93) (3162) -
Interest charged (2010 - at 5.75%, 2009 - at 8%) 35 173 -
Interest received / set-off (235) 173) -
End of the period 654 1774 73
Less non-current portion: - (1256) -
Current portion (including accrued interest
income): 654 518 73

33  Remuneration of the Group’s top management

General Directors, Managing and Finance Directors of entities are considered as the key management
personnel. Transactions with Group’s key management are as follows:

Salaries 2 604 2936 120
Social insurance expenses 888 949 37
Bonuses 264 85 -

3,756 3970 157
The number of key management at the end of year 26 18 3
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34  Events after the balance sheet date

On 18 January 2011 Baltic Ground Services signed agreement for the increase of overdraft facility with a
bank up to EUR 750 thousand and extension of LTL 1 700 thousand credit facility.

On 18 February 2011 the Company issued additional 1,473,333 ordinary shares with a par value LTL 1
each for issue price of PLN 52. Following the increase of the share capital total number of shares amounts
to 5,893,333 with par value LTL 1 each. On 3 March 2011 shares of the Company were introduced to
trading at Warsaw Stock Exchange.

In March and April 2011 the Company granted loans to subsidiaries in total amount of LTL 25 625
thousand.

On 18 March the Group has signed Airbus 320 lease agreement. Indemnity under the lease agreement for
lease payment to the lessor in the amount of USD 12 million is provided by Small Planet Airlines UAB.

On 13 April 2011 the Company established a subsidiary AviationCV.com UAB. The company is intended

to be engaged in offering flight crew lease and consulting services for corporate clients, as well as
maintaining an online database for aviation jobseekers AviationCV.com.

General Director
Linas Dovydénas
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I. GENERAL INFORMATION
Reporting period Year ended 31 December 2010

Issuer and its contact details

Name of the Issuer Avia Solutions Group AB

(hereinafter — ‘Avia Solutions Group AB’ or ‘the Company”)

Legal form Public company (joint-stock company)

Date of registration 31 August 2010

Name of Register of Legal Entities State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Code of enterprise 302541648

Registered office Smolensko St 10, LT-03201 Vilnius, Lithuania
Telephone number +370 5 252 5500

Fax number +370 5 252 5501

Internet address Www.aviasg.com

Main activities

Avia Solutions Group AB is a holding company together with it's subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively — the ‘Group’) engaged in
delivering our clients integrated solutions in aviation related services.

The Group operates are into four business segments:

- Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO);
- Aircraft Ground Handling and Fuelling;

- Charter Operations;

- Pilot and Crew Training,.

Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and Overhaul (MRO)

Activities in our MRO business segment are conducted by FL Technics UAB (“FL Technics”) and include: aireraft base and line
maintenance, component maintenance, engineering services, spare parts and consumable sales, technical training, consulting,
engine maintenance management and other related aircraft maintenance services. In 2010 the Group decided to enter business jet
maintenance market and initiated certification of FL. Technics Jets UAB for Hawker 700-900XP family was completed on 15 April
2011

Base maintenance

FL Technics occupies 2 aircraft maintenance hangars together with administrative, warehouse and backshop facilities in Vilnius
International Airport - 13,742 sq. meters in total. The hangars are comprised of total 5 airframe maintenance bays. Utilizing these
hangars and the nearby premises FL. Technics provides base maintenance services, including: aircraft base maintenance checks,
structure inspection and structure repairs, routine maintenance, technical defect rectification, interior refurbishment, minor / major
modifications (avionics, airframe), engine replacement, landing gear replacement and non-destructive testing.

Line maintenance

Line maintenance is defined as maintenance that is carried out before each flight to ensure that the aircraft is fit for the intended
flight and includes: daily service and weekly checks, unscheduled checks, troubleshooting, defect rectification and minor
component replacement.

As at 31 December 2010 FL Technics operated nine line stations — three in Kazakhstan, two in Tajikistan, with the remaining four
located in UK, Italy, Russia and Vilnius.

Continuing airworthiness managenent (engineering) services

FL Technics provides comprehensive engineering management services to the aircraft operators, airlines and leasing companies.
Basic engineering services provided by FL Technics include: aircraft airworthiness review and renewal, engine condition
monitoring, aircraft weighting, flight data read-out, monitoring and analysis and ageing aircraft programmes.

Spare parts and consumable sales

FL Technics provides comprehensive spare parts management services including: planning / provisioning, purchasing, inventory
control, asset management, warehousing and distribution of spare parts and consumables. One of the core competences of FL
Technics is spare parts logistics based on experience and enhanced with good geographical location of Lithuania.
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Technical training and consulting services

FL Technics provides technical training for aviation specialists involved in the maintenance and repair of aircraft, as well as other
specialized training programmes and consulting services. The training programmes, which are drawn up in accordance with the
requirements of EASA, cover four main areas: basic maintenance training, aircraft type training, specialized aviation training and
other consulting services.

Other MRO services
Other services are mainly comprised of component repair and overhaul services. FL Technics is also approved to perform non-
destructive testing (eddy current, magnetic particle, dye penetrate and ultrasonic) of airframes and components.

Charter operations

Charter operations segment comprises activities conducted through a group of companies jointly referred to as Small Planet
Airlines, namely: Small Planet Airlines UAB (“Small Planet Airlines LT”), Small Planet Airlines Sp. z.0.0. (“Small Planet Airlines
PL”), Small Planet Airlines AS (“Small Planet Airlines EE”) and Small Planet Airlines S.r.1. (“Small Planet Airlines IT”).

Small Planet Airlines is a regional group of charter airlines offering a full range of charter and leisure travel services, including but
not limited to:

- Full charter programmes for tour operators;

- Aircraft wet-lease programmes;

- Ad-hoc flights.

As at 31 December 2010 Small Planet Airlines had a fleet of 7 aircraft. All aircraft are leased under operating lease agreements which
expire between 2010-2015. One Boeing 757-200 aircraft leased by Small Planet Airlines LT under operating lease contract is
subleased to an airline in Kazakhstan for the lease term which expires in the year 2015.

Aircraft Ground Handling and Fuelling

Aircraft ground handling and fuelling services are conducted by two Subsidiaries of the Company, namely: Baltic Ground Services
UAB (“Baltic Ground Services LT”) and Baltic Ground Services PL Sp. z.0.0. (“Baltic Ground Services PL”). Baltic Ground Services
LT and Baltic Ground Services PL are jointly referred to as “Baltic Ground Services”.

Baltic Ground Services is a regional group of ground handling companies, which provide full range of aircraft ground handling and
fuelling services. As 31 December 2010, Baltic Ground Services activities were concentrated in Vilnius International Airport and
conducted through Baltic Ground Services LT. The Polish Subsidiary — Baltic Ground Services PL - was established in April 2010
and was granted the Airport Ground Handling Agent Certificate in August 2010. As at 31 December 2010, Baltic Ground Services
PL was in a preparation stage to start ground handling activities in Warsaw International Airport and fuelling activities in Krakow
International Airport in the Republic of Poland. The first ground handling client in Warsaw International Airport was served in
March 2011.

Pilot and Crew Training

Pilot and crew training operations are carried through Baltic Aviation Academy UAB (“Baltic Aviation Academy”) that is one of the
leading aviation training organizations in Eastern Europe. Certified as TRTO (Type Rating Training Organization) and FTO (Flight
Training Organization) Baltic Aviation Academy is capable to offer courses for pilots and cabin crew at every stage of their careers.
Baltic Aviation Academy training headquarters are located in Vilnius, Lithuania. Baltic Aviation Academy occupies 1,329.49 sq. m.
training centre. It is an integrated learning complex with modern auditoriums, rest areas, dining rooms and specialized training
facilities equipped with Boeing 737-300/-400/-500 Full Flight Simulator (FFS) and Real Fire Fighting and Smoke Trainer.

In addition to the above Boeing 737-300/-400/-500 FES, Baltic Aviation Academy leases numerous other aircraft type simulators in
UK, Spain, France, USA, Sweden, Germany and Russia. The contracted third party simulators allow Baltic Aviation Academy to
offer its clients a complete package of Type Rating Training services by combining theoretical training in Vilnius training
headquarters and practical FFS training in other locations.

The Company's vision is to be the best partner in aviation related services in the region. By employing professionalism of our
employees, taking responsibility and being flexible in finding the best way to improve any situation we enable customers to focus
on their core activities. The Group's mission is to create value for shareholders and customers by providing professional and high-
quality aviation related services.

As on 31 December 2010, the Group consisted of the parent company, Avia Solutions Group AB, (registered on 31 August 2010,
code 302541648, name of the Register of Legal Entities: State Enterprise Center of Registers; address: Smolensko St 10, LT-03201
Vilnius tel.; +370 5 252 5500; fax. +370 5 252 5501; internet address: www.aviasg.com) and it's effective subsidiaries:
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: - . . Effective
N:xp«;fn t;xe Date of reglst:;tioer;a;(;ﬁi ;}::ne of Register Contact details 2 holding of the
: Company (%)
FL Technics 22 December 2005, code 300517602, Register Rodiinios road 2, 1.T-02189 Vilnius,
AB of Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania  Lithuania tel. +370 5252 5015, fax. +370 5252 100.00
5646, www . fltechnics.com
FL Technics 11 June 2007, code 300869952, Register of Smolensko st. 10, LT-03201 Vilnius,
Jets UAB Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania Lithuania tel. +370 5252 5015, fax. +370 5252 100.00
5646, www fltjets.com
Baltic Ground 11 August 2005, code 300136658, Register of Rodtmios road 6, LT- 02187 Vilnius,
Services UAB Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania Lithuania tel. +370 5252 55 92, fax. +370 5 100.00
252 50 07, www.bgs.aero
Baltic Ground 15 April 2010, code 0000353957, Register of 17 Stycznia 45 B, 02-146 Warsaw, Poland, tel.
Services PL Entrepreneurs of the National Court +48 22 256 99 00, fax. +48 22 256 99 01,
Sp. z.0.0. Register held by the District Court for the www.bgs.aero 100.00
Capital City of Warsaw in Warsaw, XIII
Commercial Division of the National Court
Register
Baltic Ground Code R.E.A. RM-1287462, Company Via Della Scafa 158, Fiumicino, Rome -
Servicess.r.l. Registration Number c/o Chamber of 00054, Ttaly, Tel . +390683517845 Fax : 100.00
Commerce: CCIAA T 76480595 +3906650275333, www.bgs.aero
Baltic Aviation 22 November 2006, code 300618099, Register ~ Dariaus ir Giréno str. 21, Vilnius, Lithuania
Academy of Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania  tel. +370 5 2525536, fax. +370 5 2525537, 100.00
UAB www.balticaa.com
Small Planet 14 March 2007, code 300659612, Register of Smolensko str. 10, LT- 03201 Vilnius,
Airlines UAB Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania Lithuania tel. +370 5 252 5660, fax. +370 5 252 95.5
5661, www.smallplanet.aero
Small Planet 5 December 2008, code 11557208, Lennujaama 2, Tallinn 11101, Estonia tel.
Airlines AS Commercial Register of Estonia +372 605 8974, fax. +372 605 8970, 95.5
www.smallplanet.aero
Small Planet 25 November, code 0000342451, Register of 17 Stycznia 45 B, 02-146, Warsaw, Poland tel.
Airlines Sp. Entrepreneurs of the National Court +48 22 427 9090, +48 22 427 9093,
2.0.0. Register held by the District Court for the www.smallplanet.aero 95.5
Capital City of Warsaw in Warsaw, XIII '
Commercial Division of the National Court
Register
Small Planet 17 February 2010, code PD-390928, Padova Padova (PD) Galleria dei Borromeo 3 cap
Airlines S.r.L Chamber of Commerce 35137, ITtaly tel. +390 66502751, fax. 95.5
+390 6650275333, www.smallplanet.aero
FLT Trading 26 May 2010, code 302514409, Register of Zirmiuy g. 139, Vilnius, Lithuania 100.00
House UAB Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania )
Locatory.com 7 December 2010, code 302572273, Register Smolensko st. 10, LT-03201 Vilnius,
UAB of Legal Persons of the Republic of Lithuania  Lithuania tel. +370 5252 5500 100.00
fax. +370 5 252 5501, www.locatory.com
Asat 31 December 2010 the Company had no branches.
Data about securities fraded on regulated market
On 3 March 2011 shares of the Company were introduced to trading at Warsaw Stock Exchange (code: AVIASGY):
Type of shares Number of Nominal value Total nominal valuein LTL ISIN
shares in LTL
Ordinary registered shares 5,893,333 1 5,893,333 LT0000128381

Securities of the Company’s subsidiaries are not traded publicly.

II. INANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

In 2010 Avia Solutions Group AB and its subsidiaries (hereinafter — the Group) achieved a considerably good result in the
recovering market that was significantly affected by overall regional downturn. Despite the fact that demand has started recovering
only in second half of 2010, revenue of the Group increased by 30% in 2010 as compared to the full year of 2009 up to LTL 304
million and net profit amounted to LTL 17.8 million being more than 3 times larger as compared to 2009.
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The result was driven by revenue growth in all sectors with largest revenue growth from external customers in aircraft ground
handling and fuelling segment that increased by 432%. The largest gross profitability growth in absolute terms was in aircraft
maintenance, repair and overhaul segment that increased by LTL 11 million or 72%. Results were generated primarily asa result of
strategic decisions made, operational plans implemented and cost control measures taken.

The Group also focused on obtaining additional licenses and further business development. Key events during 2010 are

summarized below:

Date Operating Segment Event
May 2010 Charter Operations Small Planet Airlines Sp. z.o.0. obtains the Air Operator Certificate (AOC)
May 2010 Charter Operations Small Planet Airlines Sp. z.0.0. obtains the Operating Licence and starts its
operation as a certified air carrier in the Republic of Poland
May 2010 Training Baltic Aviation Academy UAB is granted the authorisation by Lithuanian
CAA touse ERJ 145 and CR] 600 Fuil Flight Simulators (FFSs) located in
France and Germany respectively for its training services
May 2010 Training Baltic Aviation Academy UAB further expands its TRTO capability list:
Embraer 135 & 145 Type Rating Training is added to Type Rating Training
capability list
June 2010 Aircraft Ground Handling Baltic Ground Services UAB obtains the Licence to Engage in Wholesale of
and Fuelling Bulk Petroleum Products
June 2010 Aircraft Maintenance, FL Technics AB expands its PART-145 maintenance capabilities with Boeing
Repair and Overhaul (MRO) 737 -600/700/800/900 base maintenance services
July 2010 Training Baltic Aviation Academy UAB further expands its TRTO capability list:

Airbus A320 and Bombardier CR] 100 are added to Type Rating Training
capability list

August 2010

Aircraft Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul (MRO)

FL Technics AB expands its maintenance training capabilities with ATR 42 -
200/300 and ATR 72 -100/200 theoretical training services

August 2010

Training

Baltic Aviation Academy UAB obtains the approval of Kyrgyz Civil Aviation
Authorities for its TRTO services

August 2010

Aircraft Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul (MRO)

FL Technics AB purchases second Boeing 737-300 fuselage for part-out

August 2010

Aircraft Ground Handling
and Fuelling

Baltic Ground Services PL Sp. z.0.0. obtains Airport Handling Agent
Certificate in the Republic of Poland

December 2010

Aircraft Maintenance,
Repair and Overhaul (MRO)

Airbus A318/A319/A320/A321 are added to PART M capability list

The major events tot

he Group’s structure during 2010 were as follows:

Date Operating Segment Event
February 2010 Charter Operations Small Planet Airlines S.r.1. is established in Padova (Italy)
April 2010 Aircraft Ground Handling and Fuelling Baltic Ground Services PL Sp. z.0.0. is established in Warsaw
(Poland)
September 2010 All segments Pre-IPO Reorganisation takes place
November 2010 Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and FLT Trading House UAB is acquired
Overhaul (MRO}
December 2010 Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and FL Technics Jets UAB is acquired
Overhaul (MRO}
December 2010 Aircraft Maintenance, Repair and Locatory.com UAB is established in Vilnius, Lithuania
Overhaul (MRO)
December 2010 Aircraft Ground Handling and Fuelling Baltic Ground Services IT S.r.} is established in Rome, Italy

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared according to International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the European Union,
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Key figures of the Group

 Financial ﬁgures - - - oM o009 ange
Revenue (LTL thousand) 304 263 233 358 30%
Operating profit (LTL thousand) 23 845 8145 193%
Operating profit margin (%) 7.8% 3.5%
Profit before income tax (LTL thousand) 20 670 6335 226%
Profit for the period (LTL thousand) 17 791 4650 283%
Profit for the period margin (%) 5.8% 2.0%
Earnings per share (LTL) 4.03 1.01
Number of shares (thousand) 4420 -
Financial rations . 31December 31 December

2010 2009

Return on equity (ROE) (%) 71% 66%
Gearing ratio (%) 50% 72%
Equity to total assets ratio (%) 22% 10%
Liquidity ratio 1.17 0.85
Number of full-time employees at the end of the period 678 567

. Operating figures : 2010 | 2009 Change
Number of SOLD man-hours in base maintenance 168 225 274123 (38.6)
Number of SOLD man-hours in engineering 34 986 19 066 83.5
Number of SOLD man-hours in maintenance training 5198 1194 335.4
Number of line stations at the end of the period 9 6 50.0
Number of aircraft at the end of the period 6 5 20.0
Number of flights 1552 1477 5.1
Number of passengers carried (in thousands) 397 129 440 683 {9.9)
ASKs (in million) 1184 1269 (6.7)
RPKs (in million) 986 1017 3.0)
Number of block hours 10 591 10 851 (2.4)
Number of aircraft served 3776 3307 14.2
Number of passengers served 458 429 266 558 72.0
Volume of fuel sold (tonnes) 31603 24 055 314
TRTO - Number of sold theoretical training hours 2717 808 236.3
TRTO - Number of sold practical training (FFS) hours 6722 2398 180.3
Number of SOLD man-hours in base maintenance 168 225 274123 (38.6)

Revenue

The total consolidated Group's revenue for the year 2010 was LTL 304 million, an increase by 30 per cent over the total revenue of
LTL 233 million for the year 2009.

Most significant growth as compared with 2009 was in ground handling and fuelling segment where revenues to external
customers increased by LTL 47 million and amounted to LTL 58 million in 2010 as compared to LTL 11 million in 2009. The growth
was driven primarily by Jet A-1 fuel sales to airlines in Vilnius International Airport. This activity was started in 2009 and 2010 it
reach expected operating volumes in 2010.

Adreraft maintenance segment revenues increase up to LTL 77 million in 2010 as compared with 1.TL 62 million in 2009 was driven
primarily by significant increase in demand for maintenance services in second half of 2010.

Training service segment revenues increased by LTL 8 million by reaching good utilisation simulator located in Vilnius and
successful start of utilisation of contracted simulators. Charter segment revenues increased by LTL 1 million as compared to 2009 up
to LTL 157 million.

Operating expenses

The most significant increase by LTL 41 million in cost of aircraft fuel was resulted by increase in into-plane fuelling revenues.
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Expansion of charter capacity resulted an aircraft and equipment rent expenses to increase by LTL 11 million.

As a result of strict cost control employee related expenses decreased by LTL 1 million despite the fact that number of employees
increased from 567 as at 31 December 2009 to 678 as at 31 December 2010.

Rent of premises decreased by LTL 7 million as a result of extended hangar lease contract and release of accruals that has been
established to compensate for lower lease rate in the beginning of the lease. By extending the lease term the Group negotiated lower
lease rates fixed rates over the lease term and accrual established became unnecessary.

Cost of services resold increased by LTL 6 million primarily as a result of additional engines re-leased and increase in
subcontracting work that has been resold to clients.

Despite economic situation in the region the Group managed to decrease the cost of impairment of receivables by LTL 1 million by
closer monitoring of financial standing of the clients and tightened credit procedures.

Net financial costs increased by LTL 1.4 million primarily as a result of increase of total borrowing from LTL 24 million as at 31
December 2009 to LTL 35 million as at 31 December 2011.

From 1 January 2010 the profit tax rate in Lithuania was decreased from 20 to 15 per cent.

Balance sheet and cash flow

During 2010 total assets of the Group increased by LTL 43 million or 61% per cent primarily as a result of an increase in current
trade and other receivables by LTL 33 million. Increase in trade and other receivables was resulted by increase in receivables by LTL
18 million due to increase in overall revenues and especially in revenues of MRO segment that are received in aviation low season
in 65 days on average. In addition prepayments increase by LTL 4 million due to prepayments on jet-fuel and deferred charged
increased by LTL 5 million primarily due to engine maintenance performed and insurance coverage expenses that expire in
September 2011.

Total liabilities in 2010 increase by LTL 25 million primarily as a result of security deposits received in the amount of LTL 9 million
and increase in trade and other payables by LTL 7 million as a result of expansion of operations. In addition borrowing liabilities
increase by LTL 11 million primarily due to necessity to finance fuelling operations and acquisition of spare parts pool, acquisition

of equipment for expansion of maintenance and fuelling capabilities and placing a deposit for aircraft lease.

Cash flow from operating activities in 2010 was lower by LTL 3 million as compared to 2009. Despite net result of LTL 17.8 million
majority of it wasused to finance trade and other receivables as mentioned above.

In 2010 the Group spent LTL 7 million in purchase of PPE and intangible assets primarily for acquisition of equipment for
expansion of maintenance and fuelling capabilities and new licence in Poland for charter operations.

In 2010 financing activities generated LTL 10 million majority of which was bank borrowings amounting to LTL 8 miilion and the
proceeds from issue of share capital in the amount of LTL 4 million.

Information about related party transactions

Information about related party transactions is provided in Note 32 of the Group’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2010.

Following the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by EU, the parties related to the Company are the Company's
subsidiaries, companies that are controlled by ZIA Valda AB and top management of the Company.

Research and development activities

There were no major research and development projects undertaken during 2010, except the ongoing development and
improvement of the Company's services and development of spare parts trade platform locatory.com and certification of Small
Planet Airline S.r.1. for the receipt of Air Operators Certificate.

Environmental protection

In its activities, the Group uses innovative means and the modern technological processes that meet all ecological standards and
help reduce the negative impact on the environment.

Risk management

The main risk factors associated with the activities of the Company are as follows:
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- Demand for aviation services;

- Changes in the legal regulation of the Group's activities;
- Competition with other market players;

—  Currencies' exchange rates fluctuation.

The Group's and the Company's activities expose it to the following financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk. The Group's Policy for Treasury Management focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects of the financial performance of the Group.
The Company's financial risk management is carried out by the CFO and the Management Board. Information about the Company's
financial risk management is provided in Note 3 of the Group’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

Significant post balance sheet events
In January 2011 FL Technics receives maintenance organisation approval for Airbus 320 family in line and base maintenance.

On 18 January 2011 Baltic Ground Services signed agreement for the increase of overdraft facility with a bank up to EUR 750
thousand and extension of LTL 1 700 thousand credit facility.

On 18 February 2011 the Company issued additional 1,473,333 ordinary shares with a par value LTL 1 each for issue price of PLN
52. Following the increase of the share capital total number of shares amounts to 5,893,333 with par value LTL 1 each. On 3 March
2011 shares of the Company were introduced to trading at Warsaw Stock Exchange.

In March and April 2011 the Company granted loans to subsidiaries in total amount of LTL 25 625 thousand.

In March 2011 Baltic Ground Services started providing ground services at Warsaw Frederic Chopin airport.

On 18 March the Group has signed Airbus 320 lease agreement. Indemnity under the lease agreement for lease payment to the
lessor in the amount of USD 12 million is provided by Small Planet Airlines UAB.

On 13 April 2011 the Company established a subsidiary AviationCV.com UAB. The company is intended to be engaged in offering
flight crew lease and consulting services for corporate clients, as well as maintaining an online database for aviation jobseekers
AviationCV.com.

On 15 April 2011 FL Technics Jets UAB received maintenance organisation approval for Hawker Beechcraft BAE 125-
700/800/750/300XP/850XP/900XP in base and line maintenance services.

Plans and forecasts

In 2011 the Group will strive to increase revenues in all services provided by the Group with the focus on expansion of maintenance
facilities, establishing ground handling and fuelling operations in Poland, increasing spare part trading volumes and starting engine
management service at full scale. The group will continue aggressive growth and geographical expansion that has been pursued so
far.

III. INFORMATION ABOUT SHARE CAPITAL AND SHAREHOLDERS

The authorised capital of the Company as at 31 December 2010 was LTL 4,420,000 and is divided into 4,420,000 ordinary shares with
a par value of LTL 1 each. All shares carry equal voting rights.

As at 31 December 2010 there were 6 shareholders in the Company. Shareholders and share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2010 were as follows:

No. ' Shareholder Role in the Company’s Management Number of Percentage
shares owned
1. ZIA Valda Cyprus Ltd. 1,939,275 43.875%
2. Harberin Enterprises Limited 1,077,375 243757,
3. Indeco: Investment and Development UAB 1,292,850 29.250%
4, Vytautas Kaikaris Member of the Management Board 55,250 1.250%
5. Jonas Butautis Member of the Management Board 44,200 1.000%
6. Auwrimas Sanikovas Member of the Management Board 11,050 0.250%
Total 4,420,000 100.00%

On 18 February 2011 the Company issued additional 1,473,333 ordinary shares with a par value LTL 1 each for issue price of PLN
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52. Following the increase of the share capital total number of shares amounts to 5,893,333 with par value LTL 1 each. On 3 March
2011 shares of the Company were introduced to trading at Warsaw Stock Exchange.

IV. PERSONNEL

Number of the Group’s employees at the end of the year:

2010 2009
Number of employees 678 567

The breakdown of the number of employees by company:

Company 31 December 31 December Change
2010 2009

FL Technics AB 316 274 42
Baltic Ground Services UAB 133 120 13
Small Planet Airlines UAB 115 105 10
Baltic Aviation Academy UAB 42 34 8
Small Planet Airlines AS 28 33 -5
Small Planet Airlines Sp.z.0.0 21 0 21
Avia Solutions Group AB 8 0 8
Baltic Ground Services Sp.z.0.0 7 0 7
Small Planet Airlines s.r.l. 3 1 2
FL Technics Jets UAB 2 2
Baltic Ground Services s.r.l. 1 1
Locatory.com UAB 1 1
FLT Trading House UAB 1 0 1
Total 678 567 111

V. MANAGING BODIES OF THE ISSUER

According to the Articles of Association of AB ”Avia Solutions Group”, the managing bodies of the Company are General Meeting
of Shareholders, the Supervisory Council, the Board and the Head of the Company (the General Manager). The Supervisory Board
is responsible for the supervision of activities of the Company and its management bodies. Board is responsible for the strategic
management of the Company (including the appointment and removal of the General Manager), whereas the General Manager
manages day-to-day operations of the Company and has the exclusive right to represent the Company in relations with third
parties.

The decisions of the General Meeting made regarding the matters of competence of the General Meeting, are binding upon the
Shareholders, the Supervisory Council, the Board, General Manager and other officials of the Company. The Shareholders of the
Company have the right to participate in the General Meeting.

The Supervisory Council is a collegial supervisory body, which is responsible for supervising the activities of the Company and its
management bodies, the appointment and removal of the members of the Management Board, submitting its comments and
proposals to the General Meeting on the Company’s operating strategy, set of annual financial statements, draft of profit/loss
appropriation, the annual report of the Company, the activities of the Management Board and the General Manager, submitting
proposals to revoke decisions of the General Meeting, Management Board or General Manager, etc. The Supervisory Council
consists of five members for a term of four years. Members of the Supervisory Council institutes two committees: Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. Three members of the Supervisory Council comprise Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and three members of the Supervisory Council comprise the Audit Committee (currently -2 members).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a collegial body, which is established to assist the Supervisory Council in all
matters relating to the appointment of candidates to the Company’s Board members, company directors or senior management

positions.

The Audit Committee is a collegial body, which is established to observe the integrity of financial information, review internal
controls and risk management systems, ensure the effectiveness of internal contro!l functions, make recommendations to the
Supervisory Council in relation to the selection of the audit firm, etc.

Members serving on the Board of the Company are acting jointly as a governing body of the Company. The Board approves the
operating strategy, the annual report of the Company, the management structure of the Company and the positions of the

employees, the positions to which employees are recruited by holding competitions, regulations of branches and representative
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offices of the Company, etc. The Board consists of five members. The members of the Board are elected for a term of four years. The
Chairman of the Board is elected by the Board from its members for four years. The members of the Board are elected by the
Supervisory Council in accordance with the procedure established by the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania.

The Board elects and recalls the General Manager, sets his/her remuneration and other conditions of the employment agreement,
approves hisfher office regulations, induces and applies penalties to him/her. The General Manager is the Head of the Company.
The Head of the Company is a one-man management body of the Company and, within his scope of authority, organizes the day-
to-day operation of the Company.

Procedure for amending the Company's Articles of Association

AB “Avia Solutions Group” Articles of Association provides that present Articles of Association of the Company may be amended
in the manner prescribed by the Lithuanian Company Law.

The Supervisory Council activities

According to the Articles of Association the Supervisory Council should be comprised of five members. On 23 August 2010, the
founder of AB “Avia Solutions Group” elected a Supervisory Board (for four-year term) consisting of the following nominees:
Hubert Bojdo, Dawid Sukacz, Michail Ireneusz Bobrowski, Vladas Bagavicius and Dziuginta Baléitné. Currently the Supervisory
Council is comprised of four members elected for the tenure of four vears (Mr. Dawid Sukasz has resigned). The vacant position in
the Supervisory Board is left deliberately with an intention that the major Institutional Investors would elect their independent
member to the Supervisory Council.

On 25 August 2010, the Supervisory Council elected Mr. Vladas Bagavicius as a Chairman of the Supervisory Council.

During 2010 two meetings of the Supervisory Council were held. The Supervisory Council elected the Chairman of the Supervisory
Council, adopted work regulations of the Supervisory Council and elected members of the Board, established the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, elected members of each committee and adopted the work regulations of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.

Members of the Supervisory Council

Vladas Bagavicius. Vladas Bagavicius is experienced in legal and management issues. He started his carrier in 1996 as a lawyer in
the Central Securities Depository of Lithuania and from 2000 acted as the Head of the Law and Administration Division in the
Depository. In 2004, he created his own law firm and acted as an independent attorney-at-law Vladas Bagavic¢ius. In 2007 he
cooperated with one of the major law firms in Lithuania Sutkiené, Pilkauskas & Partrers (presently, law firm TARK GRUNTE
SUTKIENE). Since 2008 Vladas Bagaviius acts as a member of the Management Board in Agrowill Group AB. Vladas Bagavicius
graduated from the Vilnius University, Faculty of Law in 1997,

Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski. Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski started his carrier in 2000 as a Corporate Advisor ~ Finance & Treasury
Junior Manager in Accenture (a global management consulting, technology services and outsourcing company in Ruggaland,
Ireland) (2000-2002). Afterwards, he acted as the Financial Controller at Reinhold Polska & Sweden (2002-2004) and as Associate
Director at Quinlan Private Golub U.K and Poland (2004-2006). Since 2006 until now he also acts as the Regional Director Europe
and Russia in C&L AEROSPACE LTD - US & Australian aviation company. Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski obtained an M.A. in
Management and Marketing at the Warsaw School of Economics in 2001 and M. A. in Finance Management at the Oxford University
in 2002. In 2009 he obtained an MBA degree in the University of Minnesota. Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski is an experienced manager,
managing people across Europe and the USA, he has been negotiating and dealing with different countries (Australia, China, USA)
and markets chiefly in airline business deals at the value of USD 50 million, involving selling aircraft, supplying spares, financial
solutions, reorganisation, M&A projects.

Dziuginta Bal¢iiné. DZiuginta Bal¢iiné has a considerable legal experience. She gained her professional experience at the law firm
Broda-Warnke-Schartner in Berlin (in 2003), in the Chamber of Industry and Commerce in Berlin (in 2005), at the law firm N.
Motiejuniene, M. Pukas and Partners (R6dl & Partner UAB) in Vilnius, Lithuania (in 2006) and in the Political Unit of
Representation of the European Commission in Berlin (in 2006). DZiuginta Balcitiné worked as an associate lawyer at the law firm
Bernotas and Dominas GLIMSTEDT in Vilnius (2006-2008) and as an associate lawyer at the law firm RAIDLA LEJINS &
NORCOUS in Vilnius (2009-10) and since 2010 she works as a lawver at the law firm of DZiuginta Bal¢itné. DZiuginta Baléitneé has
a special knowledge in mergers and acquisitions, real estate law, bankruptcy and restructuring. Dziuginta Bal¢iGné graduated from
the Vilnius University, Faculty of Law in 2004 and obtained a Master of German and European Law and Legal Practice (M.LL.P.) in
Humboldt University, Law faculty, in Berlin, Germany.

Hubert Bojdo. Hubert Bojdo started his carrier in 1996 as a Stock Exchange Broker at the Brokerage House of Polish Investment
Bank SA (1996 — 1997). He continued in Arthur Andersen Sp. z 0.0 (1997-2002) as a Manager in the Tax Department and Deloitte
Doradztwo Podatkowe Sp. z o.0. (2002-2006) as a Director in charge of the International Taxation Group. In 2006 he became one of
the founders of HB & Partners Tax Advisory and until 2009 acted as the Managing Partner. Since 2008 he is acting as a Vice
President for Rubicon Partners NFI SA and since 2009 as a Vice President of Rubicon Partners Dom Maklerski SA. In addition, he is
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acting as a member of the Supervisory Council of Mirbud SA, IQ Partners SA and Voxel SA. Hubert Bojdo is a former member of
the Supervisory Councils of IB System SA, Magna Polonia NFI SA and HPF TFI SA. In 1997 he obtained a Master's degree at the
Faculty of Banking and Finance in the Warsaw School of Economics and in 1999 he undertook studies for PhD candidates at the
Foreign Trade Faculty in the Warsaw School of Ecoriomics. Hubert Bojdo is also a licensed stock exchange broker (since 1995) and a
licensed tax advisor (since 2003).

The Audit Committee activities

During the first meeting of the Audit Committee that was held on 3 September, 2010 the Audit Committee discussed and resolved
to recommend the General Meeting of AB “Avia Solutions Group” to select “PricewaterhouseCoopers” UAB as the audit firm for
carrying out of the audit and financial statements.

Members of the Audit Committee

On 1 September, 2010 the Supervisory Council elected Mr. Hubert Bojdo, Mr. Dawid Sukascz and Mrs. Dziuginta Balditné as
memnbers of the Audit Committee. Currently the Audit Committee consists of two members, Mr. Dawid Sukascz has resigned.

Information about Mr. Hubert Bojdo and Mrs. Dziuginta Bal¢itiné is presented in paragraphs above.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee activities

During 2010 no meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held.

Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

On 1 September, 2010 the Supervisory Council elected Mr. Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski, Mr. Viadas Bagavicius and Mrs. DZiuginta
Bal¢itiné as members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Information about Mr Mr. Michal Ireneusz Bobrowski, Mr. Vladas Bagavidius and Mrs. DZiuginta Bal&itne is presented in
paragraphs above.

The Board Activities

On 25 August 2010, the Supervisory Council elected a Board (for four-year term) consisting of the following nominees: Gediminas
Ziemelis, Aurimas Sanikovas, Jonas Butautis, Saulius Batavi¢ius and Vytautas Kaikaris.

On 25 August 2010, the Board elected Mr. Gediminas Ziemelis as Chairman of the Board.

During 2010 sixteen meetings of the Board were held. During all Board meetings in 2010 there was quorum prescribed by legal acts.
The Board elected the Chairman of the Board, adopted work regulations of the Board, elected the General Manager, adopted a
decision to invest into the legal entities, approved the contract with audit company, the acquisition of a call option, acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of another company, the policy and procedures for managing and disclosure of inside information,
documentation related to the establishment of subsidiary company, the supplement of the Prospectus, rules regarding the use of
trade secret information and the list of trade secrets, the dress code policy of the Company, approved other agreements related to
activities of the Company, decided to establish a public limited Hability company Locatory.com, suspended the offering of the
shares of the Company and later determined the maximum price of newly issued shares of the Company.

Members of the Board as of 25 August 2010

Gediminas Ziemelis. Gediminas Ziemelis has a unique management and advisory experience. In 2008, under the request of the
Prime Minister of the Republic of Lithuania he gave practical proposals on anti-crisis actions to be taken. He started his carrier in
1999 as the assistant manager of the Vindication and Fraud Division in Lietuvos taupomasis bankas, AB (currently, Swedbank, AB),
the Department of Problematic Assets and Vindication (1999-2001). He acted as the General Manager of Zvilgsnis i§ ar¢iau UAB
(2001-2005) (currently named Creditinfo UAB), which was engaged mainly in debt recovery and credit risk management, the
General Manager of ZIA VALDA AB (2002-2006) and the General Manager of brokerage firm Finhill UAB FM] (in 2007). Gediminas
Ziemelisisa shareholder and a member of the Management Board in ZIA VALDA AB and since 2007 he acts as the Manager of the
Development Department. Since 2005 Gediminas Ziemelis also acts as the Manager in East Mining Group UAB, since 2006 — as the
General Manager of Eastern Agro Holdings UAB. Since 2009 till 2010 Gediminas Ziemelis also acted as a consultant in Avia
Solutions Group Holdings AB, Moreover, Gediminas Ziemelis is a member of the Supervisory Board in Agrowill AB since 2010.
Gediminas Ziemelis obtained a bachelor’'s degree at the Faculty of Business Management in the Vilnius Gediminas Technical
University, Lithuania in 1999 and a master’s degree at the Faculty of Law in the Mykolas Romeris University, Lithuania in 2006. He
has also finished the Program for Leadership Development (PLD) in the Harvard Business School, Boston, MA, U.S.: Accelerating
the Careers of High-Potential Leaders. Gediminas Ziemelis is also one of the initiators of establishment of the Association of
Aviation Companies (www.aialt) (in 2009). Mr Gediminas Ziemelis is an indirect shareholder of the Company and has an indirect
control through ZIA Valda Cyprus Ltd., has 43.88% shareholding in the Company and the sole shareholder of ZIA Valda Cyprus
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Ltd. is ZIA Valda AB, 84.42% shareholding in which is owned by Mr Gediminas Ziemelis.

Saulius Batavicius. Saulius Batavicius started his carrier as an accountant in 1998 in §iauliq stumbras AB (1998-2000). He further
acted as a production planning team leader in Baltik vairas AB, Lithuanian branch of Panther International (Germany) (2000-2002),
as the General Service and Finance Manager in éiauliu tauro televizoriai UAB (2002-2004), as the Executive Manager in Televolna
000, Kaliningrad (2004-2005), as the Manager in Banga Electronics UAB (2005-2006) and since 2006 he is acting as the director of a
subsidiary company UAB “Baltic ground services”. Saulius Batavicius obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration at
the Siauliai University, Lithuania in 1999. In 2001 Saulius Batavidius obtained a master’s degree in business management at the
Klaipéda University, Lithuania, and in 2005 he finished Master studies in International Business Management for managers at the
Baltic Management Institute.

Aurimas Sanikovas. Aurimas Sanikovas started his carrier as an audit associate in PricewaterhouseCoopers, Lithuania in 2001. In
2007 his last position held at the company was that of a manager. He performed supervision and execution of audit engagement
performed in accordance with the ISA and US GAAS. Aurimas Sanikovas has principal expertise in telecommunications, IT,
manufacturing, construction, consumer products and energy sectors. From 2007 till 2010 he acted as the Chief Financial Officer of
Avia Solutions Group Holdings AB. Aurimas Sanikovas also acted as a member of the Management Board of Avia Asset
Management AB (2008-2009), a member of the Management Board of FL Technics (2008-2010) and a member of the Management
Board of Small Planet Airlines Sp.z.o.0. (2009-2010). Since 2009 until present Aurimas Sanikovas acts as a member of the
Management Board of Small Planet Airlines AS. He has also acted as the General Manager of Avia Funds Management UAB
(currently ~ UAB “AviaAM Leasing”). Moreover, since 2010 Aurimas Sanikovas is a member of the Supervisory Board of Agrowill
Group AB. His main responsibilities at the Group include control of operations of subsidiaries, leading budgeting, reporting,
treasury and risk management functions, finance function staffing, fund raising, deal structuring, tax planning and managing
resolution of finance related issues. Aurimas Sanikovas obtained his bachelor’s and master’s degrees in economics at the Faculty of
Economics, Vilnius University, Lithuania with an exchange term in the University of Copenhagen. Since 2006 Aurimas Sanikovas is
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). Mr Aurimas Sanikovas is a direct shareholder of the
Company and has 11,050 shares of AB “Avia Solutions Group” that accounts to almost 0,19 per cent of the share capital.

Jonas Butautis. Jonas Butautis started his carrier in 1998 as an executive partner in Cesim Group (Finland). He acted for this group
until 2004 and performed start up and successful development of Cesim Central & Eastern Europe in the areas of consulting and
management development, established long-term relationships with key clients in selected target industries: telecommunications,
energy, railways, oil, post, banking and performed daily management of the company. In 20012003 Jonas Butautis acted as a
consultant for the new EU members in the OECD (Organization for Economic Co-operation and Development). He formulated
conclusions and suggested future action steps for the Governments to reduce business development obstacles in their respective
services industries. Jonas Butautis also acted as a manager for Australia and Asia regions for BTS Group UAB (2003-2008) and as a
consultant, Deputy Manager of the Corporate Governance and Control at ZIA VALDA AB (2008-2009). Since 2009 he also acts as
the General Manager of FL Technics. Jonas Butautis obtained a Master of Business Administration in the Vytautas Magnus
University (in 2000). In 1999 he undertook International Economics and Marketing Studies in SDA Bocconi, Italy. Mr Jonas Butautis
is a direct shareholder of the Company and has 44 200 shares of AB “Avia Solutions Group” that accounts to about 0,75 per cent of
the share capital.

Vytautas Kaikaris. Vytautas Kaikaris started his carrier as an auditor in KPMG Baltics in 1999-2000 and as a consultant at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2000-2003. In the period of 2003-2008 Vytautas Kaikaris worked for Bité Group and was employed in
BITE Lietuva in the following positions throughout the period: marketing director, marketing segment manager, executive assistant,
CRM project manager. Afterwards Vytautas Kaikaris acted as the Chief Executive Officer at flyLAL - Lithuanian Airlines AB (2008-
2009). Since 2009 he is the Chief Executive Officer of Small Planet Airlines UAB. Vytautas Kaikaris also acts as a member of the
Management Board of Small Planet Airlines AS, Small Planet Airlines S.r.1. and Small Planet Airlines Sp. z.0.0. Vytautas Kaikaris
obtained a bachelor degree in international business in 1999 in the Concordia International University Estonia, Tallinn, Estonia.
Since 2006 he has been studying for his master’s degree in business administration at the International School of Management
(ISM), Vilnius, Lithuania. He also finished numerous additional courses. In addition, Vytautas Kaikaris is a shareholder of
subsidiaries, he ows 4.5 per cent of shares in Small Planet Airlines UAB, Small Planet Airlines AS, Small Planet Airlines Sp. z.0.0.
and Small Planet AirlinesS.r.l. Also he is a direct shareholder of the Company and ows 55 250 shares of AB “Avia Solutions Group”
that accounts to about 0,94 per cent of share capital.

Members of the Company's Administration

Company’s Administration consists of three key executives: the Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Development and the
General Manager. All the employees of the Company are directly subordinated and report to the General Manager.

Linas Dovydénas. Linas Dovydénas started his carrier in 1995 in Sanitex UAB, Lithuania. He worked for this company for 7 years
and his last two positions held at the company were Key Account Manager and Regional Manager Horeca. From 2002 to 2007 he
acted for Philip Morris Baltic States. He held the following positions at the company: Supervisor Key Accounts Baltic States,
Manager National Sales Estonia, Manager Customer Development Lithuania and Manager National Sales Lithuania. Linas
Dovydénas joined the Group in 2008. He held a position of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Small Planet Airlines AS and
was a member of the Management Board in FL Technics. He leads the management team in planning, development and
implementation strategies to meet agreed organizational plans within agreed budgets and timescales. In 1997 Linas Dovydénas
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obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business and Business Administration at the Faculty of Economics, Vilnius University, and in 2006
he obtained an executive MBA at the Baltic Management Institute.

Information about Gediminas Ziemelis and Aurimas Sanikovas is presented in paragraphs above.

In 2009, there were no loans, guarantees or sponsorship granted to the members of the Board or Management by the Company as
well as none of subsidiaries paid salaries or other payouts to the members of the Board or the employees of the Company for being
members of their managing bodies, except the loan taken by Mr Linas Dovydénas from AB “Avia Solutions Group”, which
constituted 73,070.00 Lt. plus interest of 1,008.72 Lt. as of 31 December 2010.

All AB “Avia Solutions Group” employment agreements with the employees, including management, of the Company are
concluded following requirements of the Labour Code of the Republic of Lithuania. Employees are employed and laid off following
requirements of the Labour Code.

Information about the remunerations and other payments by the Group to the members of the Board members and management
during 2010:

In LTL thousands (unless otherwise stated) 2010 2009
Remuneration 2 604 2936
Social insurance expenses 888 949
Bonuses 264 84
Total cost of remuneration for the board members and management 3,756 3969
The number of key management at the end of year (headcount): 26 18

There were no annual compensation (tantiemes) paid to the management board member or supervisory board member during 2010.
Auditors

Auditors from PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB audited the balance sheet of the Company and together with its consolidated
subsidiaries for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010, and the related statement of comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the
years then ended. PricewaterhouseCoopers UAB also reviewed financial statements for the 9 month period ended 30 September
2010. Total expense for the year 2010 for audit and review procedures in the Group amounted to LTL 182 thousand (2009: LTL 120
thousand}).

VI, INFORMATION ABOUT COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is planning to prepare the disclosure of compliance with the principles and recommendation set by the Governance
Code of Warsaw Stock Exchange on or before 30 June 2011,

CONFIRMATION OF RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

Following Article 22 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and the Rules on Preparation and Submission of Periodic
and Additional Information of the Lithuanian Securities Commission, we, Linas Dovydénas, General Manager of Avia Solutions
Group AB, and Aurimas Sanikovas, Chief Financial Officer of Avia Solutions Group AB, hereby confirm that, to the best of our
knowledge, Avia Solutions Group AB Consolidated Annual Report for the year 2010 includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the Group of undertakings in relation to the description of the
main risks and contingencies faced thereby.

General Director
Linas Dovydénas
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ASG: Decisions of the Board

Avia Solutions Group AB Notification on material event 19.04.2011

Decisions of the Board

On 18 April 2011 the Board of Avia Solutions Group AB (hereinafter , ASG” or “the Company”) decided:

- To approve the draft of audited annual financial statements of the Company and consolidated group for the
year 2010 (hereinafter — the “Draft set”) (enclosed as Annex) and to propose to the Company’s Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders and the Company’s Supervisory Board to approve the Draft set of the audited annual
financial statements of 2010;

- To approve the Company’s Consolidated Annual Report for the year 2010 (enclosed as Annex), prepared by the
Company and assessed by the auditors, and to present the Consolidated Annual Report of the Company for
approval to the Company’s Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the Company’s Supervisory Board;

- To approve the draft of the Company’s profit allocation for the year 2010 (enclosed as Annex) and to submit for

approval to the Company’s Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the Company’s Supervisory Board.

Attachments:

1. Draft of annual financial statements set of the Company and consolidated group for the year 2010;
2. Draft of the Company’s Consolidated Annual Report for the year 2010;

3. Draft of profit (loss) allocation.

Linas Dovydenas
General Manager



Annex to the Board Meeting Resolutions of AB “Avia Solutions Group” No. 33-1 dated 18 April 2011/ Priedas prie
AB “Avia Solutions Group” 2011-04-18 valdybos posédZio nutarimy Nr. 33-1

Allocation of AB “Avia Solutions Group” profit (loss) for the year 2010 (draft) /
AB , Avia Solutions Group” pelno (nuostoliy) paskirstymo ataskaita uz 2010 m. (projektas)

Nr/ Items/ Straipsniai Suma / Amount (LTL)
No
1. Net profit for the period since incorporation as at 31 August 2010 till 31 (133 049)

December 2010 / Grynasis ataskaitiniy finansiniy mety pelnas (nuostoliai) uz
laikotarpj nuo bendrovés jregistravimo 2010 m. rugpjicio 31 d. iki 2010 m.
gruodzio 31 d.

2. Transfers from restricted reserves / Pervedimai i§ privalomo rezervo

3. Shareholders” contribution against losses / Akcininky jnaSai Bendrovés
nuostoliams padengti

Profit for allocation / Paskirstytinas pelnas (nuostoliai)

5. Allocation of the profit / Pelno paskirstymas :

a to legal reserves / | privalomajj rezervy
b to reserves for own shares acquisition / j rezerva savoms akcijoms jsigyti
N to other reserves / i kitus rezervus
d dividends / dividendai
6. Profit for the current financial year to be carried forward to the next financial (133 049)

year / Nepaskirstytas pelnas (nuostoliai) ataskaitiniy finansiniy mety
pabaigoje, perkeliamas j kitus finansinius metus

Valdybos pirmininkas/ Chairman of the Board

Gediminas Ziemelis

Valdybos posédzio sekretorius/ Secretary of the Meeting of the Board

Jonas Butautis




ASG: Notification on material event
Nominee to the Supervisory Board of Avia Solutions Group AB

Avia Solutions Group AB (hereinafter ‘the Company’ or “ASG’) from one of the shareholders of the Company, ING
Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny, which holds 6.62 per cent of the Company’s shares and votes, received a proposal of
the nominee to the vacancy of the Supervisory Board of the Company.

As a shareholder of Avia Solutions Group AB ING Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny proposes to the Ordinary Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on 29 April 2011 in Vilnius, Lithuania, the following nominee to be
elected to the Supervisory Board of Avia Solutions Group AB:

Mr. Dariusz Formela (independent candidate).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Council of the Company on the basis of the
received data and attached Curriculum Vitae evaluated the experience and education of the nominee to the vacancy
of the Supervisory Board of the Company.

In order to guarantee that shareholder’s interests and aims of the Company shall be represented respectfully, fairly
and properly the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company provides the shareholders of the
Company with the necessary information about this candidate to the Supervisory Board:

Name, surname (year of birth): Dariusz Formela (born in 1974);

Information about education: University of Gdansk, Faculty of Law and Administration (1993-1998); MBA from University of
Bradford (2004-2006); postgraduate studies: Powers of members of supervisory boards in state-owned companies (state
exam),Study for Investment Advisors and Securities Analysts, Business Development Institute, Postgraduate Studies Enterprise
Value Management, School of Economics; Postgraduate Management Studies XX edition of the School of FEconomics;
Department of Finance, the Gdansk Foundation for Management Development; Health Insurance, an internship abroad: Paris /
Auxerre (1999-2008);

Work experience and competence directly connected to collegial organs: member of the Supervisory Board in Makton SA, member
of the Supervisory Board in PGE in Lodz, Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Unipetrol a.s., including the Chairman of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Chairman of the Corporate Governance, Chairman of the Supervisory Board in
Plock Industry and Technology Park SA, Chairman of the Supervisory Board Kedzierzyn Kozle Orlen Transport Ltd., Chairman
of the Supervisory Board Orlen Laboratorium z.0.0., Chairman of the Supervisory Board Administration ORLEN z.0.0.,
Chairman of the Supervisory Board ORLEN Prevention z.0.0., Chairman of the Supervisory Board ORLEN Protection Co. 0.0.,
Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board ORLEN Accounting Ltd., Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board ORLEN Upstream
z.0.0., Member of the Supervisory Board Spolana a.s. and Kauduk a.s.

Potential conflicts and other information about candidate’s independency: has no direct interest in the share capital of Avia
Solutions Group AB.

According to the provisions of the Article 31 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania and taking into
account, that the Supervisory Board following the Statute and the Regulations of the Supervisory Board of the
Company shall be composed of 5 (five) members elected according the procedure stated in the Law on Companies by
a General Meeting of the Shareholders for 4 (four) years term, but not longer than the Annual General Meeting
during the final year of its term of office, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Supervisory Board of
the Company accordingly recommends this nominee for the approval of the shareholders at the Ordinary Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.



The documents possessed by the Company related to the agenda of the Ordinary General Shareholders Meeting,
including draft resolutions, are available at the headquarters of Avia Solutions Group AB, Smolensko str. 10, Vilnius,
Lithuania, or at the Company’s internet website www.aviasg.com.

ENCL.:

- Curriculum Vitae’s of nominee to the Supervisory Board.



CURRICULUM VITAE

Dariusz Formela

itzil(linarr%e: ul. Wiadystawa Mazura 27, 09-410 Pock
- ress: +48605725511
o 05.01.1974
Birth date: . o .
. formela.dariusz@gmail.com
email:
WORK EXPERIENCE
2009 —-now Member of the management board of PKM DUDA SA, a representative of Shareholding Banks
2008 — 2009 Director of the Organization Department at Polska Grupa Energetyczna PGE SA
2007 - 2008 Member of the management board of PKN ORLEN S.A. — Organizacja i Grupa Kapitalowa
2006 - 2008 Member of the management board of AB Mazeikiu Nafta
2004 — 2007 Executive Director for Organization issues at PKN ORLEN S.A.
Director for Restructuring and Management Systems at PKN ORLEN S.A.
1998 - 2004 Deputy Director for organizational issues at PKN ORLEN S.A.
Deputy Director for social issues at PKN ORLEN S.A.
Head of the Organization Department at PKN ORLEN S.A.
Specialist on organizational and legal issues at PKN ORLEN S.A.
1995 ~ 1998 Logistics and CPP coordinator at sp. z 0.0. w Gdansku

EXPERIENCE AT SUPERVISION BODIES

2000 - 2011

Member of the Supervision board at Makton SA

Member of the Supervision board at PGE Gornictwo i Energetyka

Vice-chairman of the Supervision board at Unipetrol AS; in this capacity, Chairman of the
Nominations and Compensations Committee and Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
Chairman of the Supervision Board at Plocki Park Przemystowo-Technologiczny S.A.
Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Transport Kedzierzyn Kozle sp. z 0.0.
Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Laboratorium sp. z 0.0.

Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Administracja sp. z 0. 0

Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Prewencja sp. z 0.0.

Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Ochrona sp. z 0.0.

Vice-Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Ksiegowos¢ sp. z 0.0.

Vice-Chairman of the Supervision Board at ORLEN Upstream sp. z 0.0.

Member of the Supervision board at Spolana a.s. and Kaucuk a.s.



PROFESSIONAL ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategy for GK ORLEN

= Participating in the strategy development for GK ORLEN regarding the growth of the largest affiliates (PKN
ORLEN SA, Mozejki Nafta, Unipetrol AS), including the investment strategy;

= Developing a strategy for the chemical industry segment, including GK ORLEN'’s contribution to consolidate
the segment in Poland and Western Europe;

= Developing the value building plan at GK Mozejki Nafta;

= Developing the strategy of relationships with minority shareholders of GK ORLEN in Poland, Czech Republic
and Lithuania;

= Developing the restructuring plan for the support function at GK ORLEN (cost reduction by 20%);

= Developing the disinvestment plan for the affiliates outside the core operations of the company;

= Developing the human resources development plan at ORLEN (brand new competitive compensation and
motivation systems).

Operational restructuring and recovery program for PKM DUDA SA

= Developing the development strategy for PKM DUDA SA (2010);

= Arranging the successful rights issue (93 mIn PLN received) intended for floating capital, financial restructuring
and buyback of shares of Shareholding Banks (2010);

= Developing the efficiency improvement plan for the value chain: supplies, production, wholesale, logistics,
retail distribution; improving GK’ EBIT GK by 25%, improving the company’s margin by 15pp (2009-2011);

= Optimizing costs, including the construction of the central procurement office for GK (2009-2010);

= Implementing the new budgeting and control model (2009);

= Developing the employment restructuring plan (2009);

= Formal supervision of the consolidation of distributor affiliates; 60% GK'’s income (2010-2011);

= Implementing SAP at distributor companies, including modules FI, CO, MM and SD (2010-2011).

Integration and restructuring program for PGE Polska Grupa Energetyczna SA

= Developing the integration concept for GK PGE (33 key affiliates with the cost reduction potential of around 2
bln PLN);

= Developing the employment restructuring plan for PGE (50%) and GK PGE (10%) (around 4 000 employees);

= Developing the investment strategy for GK PGE till 2025 (member of the board);

= Developing GK PGE’s management system based on targets (MBO for TOP 200 employees);

= Developing a competitive compensation system at PGE based on job descriptions and estimates, including the
draft of the new collective labor agreement, payment schedule and job position ratings;

=  Developing the construction plan of Shared Services Centers for GK PGE (IT, Finance and Accounting);

= Developing the operation cost reduction program for PGE (20%).

Integration of AB Mazeikiu Nafta with GK ORLEN:

= Taking over the legal, operational and financial management of MN; in particular, the coverage of all key
positions, contracts and processes during “Day One” (2006);

= Launching and following up the integrated value building program (2006-2008);

= Implementing the new corporate governance, including the organizational segmentation, implementing the
executive board, enlarging the competences of the Supervision Board, introducing a new Company’s Articles of
Association with the full approval of the Lithuanian government (2007-2008).

Integration of Unipetrol Holding company with GK ORLEN:

= Early completion (1 year in advance) of the efficiency improvement program and reaching the planned effects of
the “Partnership Program”. The Program resulted in around 150 min Euro EBIT (2005-2007);

= Unifying the corporate structure, including the launch of the Shared Services Center and Unipetrol RPA by
merger of Unipetrol Rafinerie (wholesale) and Chemopetrol (petrochemistry and chemistry) (2005-2007);

= Implementing the capital and organization restructuring program, including the transfer from joint-stock to
limited liability companies;

= Restructuring key assets of Unipetrol: the number of affiliates reduced from 63 (in 2005) down to 29 (in 2007).



Restructuring program for PKN ORLEN S.A.:

= Arranging mass dismissals (1500 employees) without strikes and social tensions (2005-2007);

= Completing the integration of Petrochemia Ptock S.A. with CPN S.A., including by dissolution of 12 regional
employers (2005);

= Creating the new organizational structure for Retail Level (2005) and Logistics Level (2007-2008);

= Qutsourcing the support function: labs, protection, administration and accountancy (2004-2006);

= Integrating the railroad affiliates into ORLEN Koltrans sp. z 0.0. (2006);

= Building IT-structures for GK ORLEN (2006) and wholesale facilities (2007).

Program for restructuring the GK ORLEN affiliates:

= Reducing the personnel number at GK Mozejki Nafta and GK Unipetrol (0 15 %);

= Restructuring Rafineria Trzebinia (organizationally and financially) to discharge the debt against banks (85 min
PLN) and avoid insolvency;

s Restructuring Budonaft to prevent its bankruptcy. Mass dismissals (60%) (2006);

= Consolidating 5 shipping companies: 700 employees with the 35% share of the shipping market (2007-2008);

=  Developing the concept of merger of 4 regional market operators (ORLEN Morena, ORLEN Petrocentrum,
ORLEN Petroprofit, ORLEN Petrozachdd).

Improving management practices at GK ORLEN:

e Implementing the concept of integration of Petrochemia Plock with CPN SA, including changes in retail,
wholesale, logistics, finances and support functions (1999-2001);

= Developing a legal framework for management at GK ORLEN, including cooperation agreements, standard
corporate documentation etc. (2007);

=  Unifying the management model of GK ORLEN: focusing on results and responsibility for the entire Group: the
shared MBO system for GK ORLEN, construction of the Corporate Center, changes in the Regulations of affiliate
companies (2007-2008);

= Supporting business areas, including the trading organization, developing and implementing the strategy for
the segment of asphalts, cils, polyolefins and chemistry with account for asset restructuring, a project for buying
back the minority shares etc. (2007-2008).

Unifying the principles of supervision at GK ORLEN, in particular:

= Introducing responsibility of the business segment and support function for operation results of the companies,
as well as management and supervision boards (2007-2008);

= Unifying the medium-term budgeting and planning principles, as well as motivation and compensation
principles (2007);

= Implementing the unified corporate documents throughout the company, including statutes and regulations of
management and supervision boards (2006-2008).

Reseaching arrangements with trade unions regarding:

= Settling the collective dispute on compensations (2008);

= Reaching arrangements on mass dismissals at PKIN ORLEN SA - 6 projects (2005-2008);

= Merging transportation affiliates (2007);

*  Arranging mass dismissals at ORLEN Budonaft sp. z 0.0. (2006);

s Restructuring regional wholesale trading branches (2006-2007);

*  Restructuring regional retail trading branches (2005);

= Calling ORLEN Administracja, ORLEN Prewencja, ORLEN Ksiggowoé¢ and including the Shipping Subsidiary
to ORLEN Koltrans (2005-2007);

®  Reaching framework arrangements on restructuring steps till 2009 (2006);

*  Resolving the collective dispute related with the dissolution of 12 regional organizations (2005);

= Settling the legal issues of employees of CPN S.A. because of the merger with PP S.A. (1999-2000).



EDUCATION

Higher education

1993-1998 University of Gdansk, :Department of Law and Administration, specialty: law

2004-2006 MBA: University of Bradford and WSPIZ im. L. KoZminskiego

1999-2008 Postgraduate studies
= Entitlements of members of supervision boards in state-owned companies (state exam)
= Studies for investment advisers and securities analysts, Business Development Institute
(Instytut Rozwoju Biznesu)
= Postgraduate studies in company value management, Warsaw School of Economics (Szkota
Gléwna Handlowa)
= Postgraduate Managerial Studies, 20th series, Warsaw School of Economics (Szkola Gtéwna
Handlowa)
*  Studies in Finances, Gdansk Foundation of Managerial Education (Gdarfska Fundacja
Ksztatcenia Menadzerow)
= Health insurance, international secondment: Paris/Auxerre

1998 — 2008 Training courses
=  Change management in mergers and acquisitions, Institute for International Research
= Strategic scorecard, Management Academy (Akademia Zarzadzania)
= Team building, Education Center (Centrum Edukacji)
=  Estimations of company assets, Gdarisk Foundation of Managerial Education (Gdanska
Fundacja Ksztalcenia Menadzeréw)
=  European commercial law, Confederation of Polish Employers (Konfederacja Pracodawcdw
Polskich)
n Art of negotiations, Business Development Institute (Instytut Rozwoju Biznesu)
= Business academy (Akademia Biznesu), Door
= Building motivation-based compensation systems, Hay Group
*  Quality-based management of organizations with account for company organization processes,
Education Center (Centrum Edukacji)
u Collective labor agreements and social pacts, FMP Management
= Civil and criminal liability of members of management and supervision boards, Art-Arika sp. z
0.0.

OTHER DETAILS

= Languages: English, Russian
= Political history of Poland
= Sports: basketball, tennis.



